
 
 
 
 

 

 

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee Agenda 
Date: Wednesday 24 January 2024 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Venue: The Oculus, Buckinghamshire Council, Gatehouse Road, Aylesbury HP19 8FF 

Membership: 

N Champken-Woods (Oxfordshire County Council), P Cunnington (Wokingham Borough 
Council), N Foot (West Berkshire Council), P Gittings (Reading Borough Council), J Hanna 
(Oxfordshire County Council) (Vice-Chairman), J Hannaby (Oxfordshire County Council), 
D Haywood (Oxfordshire County Council), C Heap (Buckinghamshire Council), N Leverton 
(Oxfordshire County Council), J MacBean (Buckinghamshire Council) (Chairman), A Mather 
(Wokingham Borough Council), R McEwan (Reading Borough Council), H Mordue 
(Buckinghamshire Council), M O'Connor (Oxfordshire County Council), S Morgan 
(Buckinghamshire Council), A Turner (Buckinghamshire Council), R Stuchbury 
(Buckinghamshire Council), F van Mierlo (Oxfordshire County Council) and M Vickers (West 
Berkshire Council) 

Webcasting notice 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being filmed. 

You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. 
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s 
published policy. 

Therefore, by entering the meeting room you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the 
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit. 



If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at 
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 

 

Agenda Item 
 

Time Page No 
 
1 Welcome 14:00  
     
2 Apologies for absence/changes in membership   
     
3 Declarations of interest   
     
4 Minutes  5 - 10 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting on 15th June 2023. 

 
  

 
5 Public Questions   
     
6 Chairman's update 14:10  
     
7 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West 

Integrated Care Board update 
14:15 11 - 24 

 This item provides Members will an overview of the 
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West (BOB) 
Integrated Care System (ICS) and the role of the Integrated 
Care Board (ICB).  It provides an opportunity to review the 
key system challenges, system goals for 2024/25 and to 
discuss the ICB’s approach to embedding these in 
planning. 
  
Presenters: 
Sim Scavazza, ICB Acting Chair 
Dr Nick Broughton, ICB Chief Executive Officer (Interim) 
  
Papers: 
Presentation attached 
 

  

 
8 Draft BOB ICB Primary Care Strategy 14:35 25 - 102 
 The BOB ICB draft Primary Care Strategy is being 

presented to Members as part of the ICB’s commitment to 
ensuring the contribution and engagement of system 
partners and the public in the development of its Primary 
Care Strategy.  The document, in draft form, sets out 
details of the ambition for a new model of primary and 
community-based care.  It builds on the Integrated Care 
Strategy (published in March 2023) and the Five Year Joint 
Forward Plan (published in July 2023). 

  

mailto:monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


  
Presenters: 
Louise Smith, BOB ICB Deputy Director Primary Care 
  
Papers: 
Cover report 
BOB Draft Primary Care Strategy 
BOB Draft Primary Care Executive Summary 
  

9 BOB ICB Communication and Engagement Strategy 
update 

15:35 103 - 112 

 The BOB ICB Communications and Engagement Strategy 
was approved by the Board in July 2023.  Members will 
hear about the work undertaken between August and 
December 2023 to illustrate how the ICB is implementing 
the strategy and developing how it engages with the local 
population and stakeholders. 
  
Presenter: 
Sarah Adair, BOB ICB Director of Communications & 
Engagement (Acting) 
  
Papers: 
Cover report 
BOB JHOSC ICB Communications and Engagement Update 
  
 

  

 
10 BOB Healthwatch update 16:00 113 - 114 
 The local Healthwatch at Place within the BOB ICB 

footprint consist of Healthwatch Bucks, Healthwatch 
Oxfordshire and three Healthwatch across Berkshire West 
(Reading, Wokingham and West Berkshire).  Members will 
hear about the work undertaken by them to jointly 
support and champion the voice and involvement of the 
local populations across the BOB ICS. 
  
Presenters: 
Zoe McIntosh, Chief Executive, Healthwatch Bucks 
Veronica Barry, Chief Executive, Healthwatch Oxon 
  
Papers: 
Joint Healthwatch update 
 

  

 
11 BOB ICB Digital and Data strategy - JHOSC working group 

update 
16:15  

 The ICS Digital and Data Strategy guides the collective 
digital, data and technology ambitions across the BOB ICS 

  



for the next three years.  It will deliver the ICS’s vision to 
improve the lives and experiences of those accessing and 
working in the ICS, through building collective digital and 
data maturity across partners and providers.  The ICB 
approved the proposed strategy at its May 2023 meeting.  
A small working group of JHOSC Members has been 
established to review this strategy and prepare a response 
on behalf of the JHOSC. 
  
The Chairman will update Members on this piece of work 
and proposed timeframes for submitting the response. 
  
Presenter: 
Cllr Jane MacBean, Chairman, Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (BOB) 
  

12 JHOSC work programme 16:20  
 For Members to discuss potential items for future JHOSC 

meetings. 
 

  

 
13 Date of next meeting 16:30  
 To be discussed and agreed. 

 
  

 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

For further information please contact: Liz Wheaton democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk 
01296 383856 



 
 
 

 

 

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee minutes 
Minutes of the meeting of the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Thursday 15 June 2023 in The Oculus, 
Buckinghamshire Council, Gatehouse Road, Aylesbury HP19 8FF, commencing at 10.00 am 
and concluding at 12.40 pm. 

Members present 

Councillor Phil Cunnington, Councillor Nigel Foot, Councillor Paul Gittings, Councillor Jane 
Hanna, Councillor Damian Haywood, Councillor Carol Heap, Councillor Jane MacBean, 
Councillor Adrian Mather, Councillor Ruth McEwan, Councillor Howard Mordue, Councillor 
Alan Turner, Councillor Robin Stuchbury and Councillor Martha Vickers 

Apologies 

Councillor Nigel Champken-Woods, Councillor Trish Elphinstone, Councillor Dan Levy, 
Councillor Dr Nathan Ley, Councillor Nick Leverton, and Councillor Susan Morgan 

Agenda Item 
 
1 Apologies for absence/changes in membership 
 Following the local elections in May 2023 and a change in proportionality in 

Buckinghamshire Council, 5 new Members had been appointed to the committee 
since the last meeting. 

       Cllr T Elphinstone (Oxfordshire) 
       Cllr N Foot (West Berkshire) 
       Cllr P Gittings (Reading) 
       Cllr M Vickers (West Berkshire) 
       Cllr R Stuchbury (Buckinghamshire) 

  
Apologies had been received from Councillors Champken-Woods, Leverton, Ley, 
Elphinstone, Levy and Morgan. 
  
Cllr Howson was present as substitute for Cllr Levy. 
  

2 Declarations of interest 
 Cllr Damian Haywood declared an interest in item 6 due to a contract with NHS 

South Central and West Commissioning Support Unit. 
  
Cllr Jane Hanna declared an interest in item 6 as chief executive of SUDEP Action. 
  

3 Minutes of the previous meeting 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 25th January 2022 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
  

4 Public Questions 
 A public question had been received from Cllr Stuart Wilson. 

  
What scrutiny will this Committee have over ICB policy and decision-making for 
capital investment into primary care, given its importance in the ICB strategy for 
place-based provision, particularly in ensuring that such decisions are fully aligned to 
current and future Local Plans for each of the Authorities represented here; and how 
can we avoid situations, such as the one we have in The Wooburns, Bourne End & 
Hedsor where we are asked to take significant levels of housing without an adequate 
upgrade in the quality and capacity of our primary care medical facilities? 
  
Response from Rob Bowen, Acting Director of Strategy and Partnerships. 
  
The Integrated Care Board recognises that housing developments and the associated 
population growth can put pressure on primary care services, including General 
Practice, and its existing estate.  Where possible the ICB makes representations on 
planning applications to maximise the opportunity of investment in health from 
developer’ contributions through Section106 or the Community Infrastructure 
Fund.  We are aware that these requests have not always been successful. 
  
The ICB does not hold capital funding directly so are reliant on bidding to NHS 
England for funding extensions/new builds through revenue payments.  Developers’ 
contributions are rarely sufficient to offset any costs to the ICB.  The BOB ICB has 
over 40 schemes in the pipeline and has had to undertake a prioritisation exercise to 
determine which schemes are for development.  The ICB does not receive any 
additional funding for such developments and therefore needs to make a judgement 
on affordability and value for money. 
  
Through the course of 2023/24 the ICB has committed to reviewing the best models 
of primary care and considering how services could be provided in a more joined up 
way, making best use of other professionals experience and capacity.   The ICB 
welcome the opportunity to work with local authority and system partners to 
explore opportunities of more integrated working, including the use of one public 
estate initiatives to ensure that we have adequate and fit for purpose primary care 
medical facilities. 
  
  

5 Chairman's update 
 The Chairman updated Members on the following: 

  
 Dr Nick Broughton, the current Chief Executive of Oxford Health NHS 

Foundation Trust, had been appointed as the Interim Chief Executive of BOB 
ICB. The Chairman expressed concerns about the interim nature of the 
appointment and mentioned discussing it with Steve McManus. The structure 

Page 6



of the ICB would remain an issue to be examined by the Committee going 
forward, particularly in terms of decision-making processes, the speed of 
development and accessibility of information. 

 Ms Mountford provided assurance to the Committee that their concerns would 
be addressed. An acting chair was currently in place, and arrangements had 
been made for the handover of the chief executive position, while an interim 
executive team ensured that work would continue without interruption. Ms 
Mountford and the Principal Scrutiny Officer offered to arrange a meeting 
between Dr Broughton and the Committee's Chairman and Vice-Chairman to 
address these concerns if requested. 

  
6 Integrated Care Strategy 
 The Chairman welcomed Robert Bowen, Acting Director of Strategy and Partnerships 

for the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West ICB, and Catherine 
Mountford, Director of Governance for BOB ICB to the meeting.  
  
The following points were highlighted: 
 The Integrated Care Strategy was owned by the ICP and set the direction across 

all the BOB area. Local Authorities and the NHS fed directly into the 
establishment of this strategy. It is notably selective of areas that would be 
beneficial to work on. 

 Feedback received was highlighted, including the general endorsement of 
priorities and principles. The document was restructured to make several 
priorities more prominent and clearer. 

 Services that were missing from the previous version, such as palliative & end of 
life care had been added. Ambitions laid out in the plan for several other service 
areas had been strengthened. 

 There was a need to ensure the prevention agenda is strengthened, and the 
approach to deliverability was touched upon later on in the strategy. 

 
During discussion, comments and questions raised by the Committee the following 
main points were noted: 
 There was ambition in the Joint Forward Plan to work on the future model of 

primary care. Later this year, a piece of work would be completed to establish 
the model of primary care and the key infrastructure requirements. There were 
some critical enablers in estates that would be worked out prior to that. 

 The need for supporting Children’s education was recognised. The Start-Well 
ambition would work alongside place-based plans that would contain more 
detail about how this would work in practice. Plans would be linked across the 
different organisations to ensure interconnection. Lifelong disabilities would be 
addressed by the Start-Well commitment. 

 A workshop was to be held in the week following the committee meeting to 
address governance arrangements and accountability for the ICP and how it 
works with the ICB. This workshop would also consider the role of Health and 
Wellbeing Boards in the new structure. 

 Members were reassured that all Local Authorities, including District Councils in 
Oxfordshire had engaged with the process in producing the Integrated Care 

Page 7



Strategy. Going forward, it would be important to define how the relationships 
with Local Authority partners would work as part of the ICP. 

 Where specific disabilities and medical conditions were not mentioned in the 
strategy, it was noted these were not being ignored. It would not have been 
feasible to ‘namecheck’ every important medical condition in the integrated 
Care Strategy.  

 Concern about NHS Dentistry provision was highlighted by the committee. It 
was noted there was a severe shortage nationally of NHS dentists and patients 
struggled to sign up with one. A Councillor encouraged Members to contact 
their MP, as it was recognised as a problem that needs national attention. 

 Planning for future healthcare provision was regarded as vitally important for 
the BOB area. Two Buckinghamshire Council Select Committees were due to 
undertake a piece of work on the topic in Autumn 2023 (Growth Infrastructure 
& Housing Select Committee and the Health & Adult Social Care Select 
Committee).  

 Relevant Review/enquiry work done by the respective Select Committees in 
each Local Authority was to be shared with Committee Members. This sharing 
of work done would be useful for place-based committee’s as well as the 
JHOSC. 

  
  

7 Five Year Joint Forward Plan 
 Robert Bowen, Acting Director of Strategy and Partnerships for the 

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West ICB, presented the Five Year Joint 
Forward Plan. 
  
During their presentation, the following key points were made: 
 The Forward Plan would be produced annually and would give a 5 year outlook. 

It would focus on the NHS element of the system and the NHS delivery plans. It 
would focus on how the NHS is responding to the integrated care strategy, 
operational requirements and providing services that meet population needs.  

 There was balance between the short term and long term in the plan. 
Furthermore, within the BOB area, the 5-year plan aimed to establish ways of 
working together across all of the different partners within the ICB.  

 Challenges were recognised across the NHS, and it was important to come 
together to try to address these. Four key challenges had been identified within 
the forward plan. They were; how to tackle the inequalities prevalent across the 
system, the ‘model of care’ which referred to moving the focus of provision of 
care & support to keep people healthy in the community and Improvement of 
experience i.e. waiting times & access and sustainability, particularly financial 
sustainability & workforce challenges. 

 More work was to be done to set out a longer-term ambition to address these 
challenges, which would be done in partnership with the wider system 
environment, not just the NHS. 

  
During the discussion, Members raised the following questions: 
 Silo working was an important challenge to address. Place based partnerships 

Page 8



were key to breaking down silos. Over the coming years, it would become 
clearer how the constituent organisations would work across the various BOB 
boundaries. The ICB was early in establishing how scale could be used 
beneficially across the system, and several different provider collaboratives 
were being proposed.  

 There was an acute provider collaborative between the Buckinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS Trust, Oxford University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and 
the Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust. They had a number of priorities 
already and would start to think about planning and using shared resources to 
break down organisational boundaries. A similar mental health provider 
collaborative brought together adult mental health, and children mental health 
services from Bucks Healthcare and Oxford Health. 

 The 5-year plan contained ambitions for where each service should be after 5 
years. There was further detail on how this would be delivered in the plan. The 
reporting structure was to be decided, and it was proposed that there would be 
a twice-yearly update to the ICB Board and NHS Trusts.  

 A system transformation group would be setup which would have multiple 
organisations and professionals involved. The group members were yet to be 
finalised. This group would look at how to develop plans around challenge 
areas. 

 Data was highlighted as key to understanding the BOB area. By the end of the 
year, there would be a single integrated data set across the BOB system. This 
was high priority for the year. There was work being done to digitize our 
providers to ensure they had modern and fit for purpose systems.   

  
  

8 Update on implementing engagement strategy 
 The Chairman welcomed Nick Samuels, ICB Interim Director of Communications and 

Engagement, to the meeting. 
  
During their presentation, the following key points were made: 
 The Strategy would not be set in stone, it would learn, evolve and adapt wo 

what works, and what people experience of it. 
 Culture change in the organisation would take time. It would need to be 

nurtured and supported. With the right infrastructure and role modelling, a 
communicative culture could emerge.  

 Engagement with communities was highlighted. It was important to have 
conversations with people in different forms and modes. This would allow the 
ICB to adjust their behaviour, activity, plans and programs accordingly. 

  
During the discussion, Members raised the following questions: 
 Citizens Panels would include representatives from local communities that the 

ICB can go to regularly, but that would be only one element of communication 
and engagement. From this, they would explore methods to suit the 
communities.  

 Engagement would aim to include children and young people who are not 
typically organised together in formal groups. The ICB would aim to be adaptive 

Page 9



to suit their requirements. 
 Nick was in an interim role as Director of Communications & Engagement until a 

permanent person takes post. The recruitment process was underway as of the 
meeting and would aim to have someone in post by September 2023.  

 The engagement strategy would be signed off by the board by 18th July 2023, 
and the operational plan brought together by the time Nick’s successor takes 
post. There was an aim to get infrastructure in place, such as citizens panels, the 
independent advisory panel and start the audience research to understand in 
detail who the audiences were, and who the partners and participants would 
be.  

  
  

9 JHOSC working protocol 
 The JHOSC working protocol was agreed. 

  
10 Work Programme discussion 
 Following discussion with the committee, the following items were suggested for 

inclusion in the work programme. 
  

       NHS provision of Dentistry 
 Primary Care Networks Planning  
       Dementia 
       Population Health Management 
       Private/public conversations 

  
11 Date of next meeting 

The date of the next meeting was to be confirmed.  

Page 10



BOB Integrated Care Board Update

Add in meeting details – HOSC 

Sim Scavazza – ICB Acting Chair
Dr Nick Broughton – ICB CEO (Interim)

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 7



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board2

Overview

Thank you for inviting us to join you today. We intend to briefly cover two main topics:

1. System Overview – Overview of BOB Integrated Care System and the role of the ICB 

2. System Priorities – An overview of our key system challenges, our System Goals for 2024/25 
and approach to embedding these in planning

3. Discussion

P
age 12



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board3

System Overview P
age 13



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board4

System Overview: BOB Integrated Care System

The 2022 Health and Care Act formally established Integrated Care Systems as partnerships, which bring together NHS 
providers and commissioners with local authorities and other partners to collectively plan health and care services together. 

Integrated Care Systems have four aims:

P
age 14



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board5

System Overview: BOB Integrated Care System

NHS Budget: £3.3billion

P
age 15



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board6

System Overview: Our Population 

57,000 people in BOB live in an area 
which is in the 20% most deprived 

nationally

The demographics of our population 
vary significantly, with greater ethnic 

diversity in our towns and cities 

We have significant inequalities across 
our population with life expectancy 

gaps of up to 12 years between 
different areas. 

Around 12% of adults have a recorded  
diagnosis of depression and 0.8% have 

a severe mental illness

People in our more deprived areas 
develop poor health 10-15 years 

earlier than those in less deprived 
areas

Estimated 60% of people over 60 have 
one or more long term condition 

The number of people aged over 65 
is expected to increase by 37% by 

2042

Population size is anticipated to grow 
by 5% by 2042

Across BOB, 3 in 5 adults are            
overweight or obese. 68% of adults with a 

learning disability are overweight. 

Inequalities Health Conditions Population change

P
age 16



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board7

System Overview: System Governance

BOB ICB Board Membership:

• Chair
• 5 x Non-Executive Directors
• 1 x Primary Care Partner Member
• 1x Mental Health Partner Member
• 1x NHS Trust/FT Partner Member
• 1x Local Authority Partner Member
• ICB CEO
• 3 x ICB Executive Directors

P
age 17



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

Aims
Ø Reduce unwarranted variation
Ø Improve resilience of services 
Ø Improve efficiency
Ø Work at scale to tackle system challenges and pool capacity

We have two Provider Collaboratives working exclusively across BOB:
1. Acute Provider Collaborative (BHT, OUH and RBFT)
2. Mental Health Provider Collaborative (BHFT, OHFT
These build on further MH collaboratives for specialised services which 
reach beyond our geography

8

System Overview: Our System Landscape
BOB Integrated Care System (ICS)
BOB Integrated Care Board (ICB)

Pr
ov

id
er

 C
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

es

Wider System Partners: (e.g. Voluntary and Community Sector, Universities etc)

Place Based Partnerships 
Oxfordshire Buckinghamshire Berkshire West

We have three Place Based Partnerships who each come 
together to: 

• Work collaboratively across health, social care and the 
voluntary sector to join up pathways 

• Lead design and delivery of integrated services

• Engage communities in the design and delivery of 
services

• Develop and work as Integrated Neighbourhood 
Teams 

Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

P
age 18



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board9

System Overview: The Role of BOB ICB

Focus on areas where a system level 
perspective delivers impact, always acting 

in the best interests of population

Assure service delivery to support high and 
equitable access to care across the ICB

Allocate resources effectively between our 
places and partners to achieve the best 

outcomes for our population

Create the right environment for system 
collaboration (NHS, social care, local 
authorities, academic partners etc.) 

through effective leadership

ICB
purpose

What 
we do

Empower our partnerships to deliver high 
quality services and transformation, embed 

best practice to support shared learning

ICS
purpose

in 
population health and

healthcare

How we 
do it

in 
outcomes, experience

and access and value for money
Help the NHS support 

broader

Embed consistency across the system to 
realise efficiencies, and drive equal 

outcomes for our population

Working to design, plan and join-up health and care services across BOB so that we can improve 
the lives of our population and deliver greater value togetherP

age 19



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board10

System Priorities

P
age 20



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board11

BOB System Goals 2024/25 – Background 

• Strategic Priorities – As part of our planning for the next financial year, we are seeking to identify 
a small number of programmes to prioritise as a system, within the wider context of our Joint 
Forward Plan and Integrated Care Strategy. 

• System challenges – We have worked to identify areas where we think there is a strong rationale 
for a system focus, beyond work at Place or Provider level either due to the scale of the challenge, 
the need for multi-sector collaboration or the need to tackle variation across places or providers. 

• Engaging across the system – We have been engaging across the system since October 2023, 
to develop a list of draft goals, with more detail set out in our January 2024 Board paper. We are 
now working to finalise these and set out what delivery looks like across the system from March 
2024.

• Planning 2024/25 – Commitment to the goals will be reflected through overall system planning 
alongside individual Trust plans. 

P
age 21



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board

BOB System Goals 2024/25 DRAFT

Provide more joined up, proactive and 
accessible care, by bringing together 

teams and resources across organisations 
into Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

1

Improve the mental wellbeing of 
children and young people by working 
together to pilot and scale preventative 

approaches and improvements, including 
within the neurodiversity pathway

2

Extend healthy life expectancy by 
preventing strokes and heart attacks, 

through working together to improve CVD 
pathways and prevention and targeting 
action to where it will have most impact

3
Accelerate our provider collaboratives 

(Acute & Mental Health) to tackle 
variation to drive increased equity of 

access, outcome and experience

4

Deliver savings through 
adopting a system-wide approach to 
procurement and estates (One Public 
Estate) across our places and providers 

5

Develop a more unified approach to 
supporting and retaining our people, 
reducing temporary staffing, supporting 
local employment and supporting the 
health and wellbeing of our people

6

Enhance productivity 
and value for money 

Tackle inequalities in 
outcomes, experience 
and access 

Help the NHS support 
broader social and 
economic 
development

Improve outcomes 
for our population 
health and healthcare

Enabled by System Digital & Data 
Programmes
• Digitise: Reaching a core level of 

digitisation across the system. 
• Connect: Connecting care settings 

across organisations and sectors 
• Transform: Targeting our resource 

through population health management 
to better meet the needs of our 
population 

P
age 22



BOB System Goals Roadmap to 2024/25

  

  
1. Setting our 

System Ambition

2. Engaging System 
Partners

3. Refining into 
Measurable Goals

4. Developing Delivery 
Approach

  
5. Commence 

System Delivery 
Programme

System Leadership Forum 
held to agree 3-5 year 

System Ambition and identify 
2024/25 goals

October 2023
Refining priorities and 

translating into measurable 
goals 

December 2023

Engaging partners in 
discussion of initial draft 

goals ahead of ICB Board 
discussion

November 2023
Follow-up ICB Board discussion to 
agree next iteration of goals, key 
measures and high-level delivery 

approach

January 2024

Final goals and delivery programme 
agreed at March Board before 

commencing delivery programme. To 
be reported on at every public ICB 

board during 2024/25

March 2024

Our roadmap to March 2024, when we commence the delivery programme of our goals is as follows:

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West (BOB) 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) 

 
Date of meeting:  24 January 2024 Item:  

 

Title of paper BOB ICB Primary Care Strategy  
 

Paper is for:   Discussion  Decision  Information  
 

 
Purpose and executive summary:   
 
The BOB ICB draft Primary Care Strategy is presented to the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and 
Berkshire West Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (BOB JHOSC) as part of the ICB’s 
commitment to ensuring the contribution and engagement of system partners and the public in the 
development of its Primary Care Strategy.  
Since July 2023 BOB ICB has been developing its Primary Care Strategy informed by research, 
analysis and engagement. The document in draft form sets out details of the ambition for a new model 
of primary and community-based care also outlined in our Integrated Care Strategy (published in 
March 2023) and the Five Year Joint Forward Plan (published in July 2023). This is set in the context 
of a clear national and global direction of travel for Primary Care, including the Fuller Stocktake, which 
describes how primary care should streamline access, provide continuity of care and focus more on 
prevention.  
Integration is at the heart of the model and the high-level priorities are below. 

• Everyone who lives in BOB to be able to receive the right support when it is needed and with 
the right health and/or care professional. Our communities are finding it difficult to get an 
appointment in General Practice or with an NHS dentist, and this needs to change.  

• Integrated Neighbourhood Teams to care for those people who would benefit most from 
proactive, personalised care from a holistic team of professionals, for example those at most 
risk of emergency hospital admissions.  

• To help communities stay well with an initial targeted focus on our biggest killer and driver of 
inequalities, cardiovascular disease.  

Moving towards a more community-based and preventative health and care system will require a 
fundamental shift of activity, resource and funding, and the changes in the strategy are intended to 
support that shift. 
So far, in developing our Primary Care strategy, we have engaged with many stakeholders across the 
system in the following forms:   

• Focus groups with General Practice, Practice Managers, Community Pharmacy, Optometry 
and Dentistry (POD) to understand the Primary Care current state.  

• Surveys with all General Practices in BOB and POD colleagues to understand current state. 

• 1-day system workshop (135 colleagues from across the system including local authority, 
Healthwatch, voluntary / community sector (VCSE) and GP patient participation group 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

representatives) in order to have a collaborative discussion regarding the opportunities for the 
future model of care.  

• Sessions with GP Chairs, and representatives from VCSE, Acute, Community, Digital and 
Data, workforce and estates to co-develop the Primary Care Strategy content.  

• Public engagement, the ‘Primary Care Conversation’, launched on 17 November asking the 
public to share their views, insights, and experiences of primary care. Three hundred and forty-
five people, so far, have shared their views and experiences of primary care: 

o 124 from Buckinghamshire, 151 from Oxfordshire, 52 from Berkshire West and 18 not 
disclosed. 

o 165 people contributed to the ideas board about what was working well in primary care 
and what could be improved. 

o 1,054 unique visits to the engagement site; 989 of those were classed as being informed 
(term used for those people who have downloaded documents or clicked through to 
sections of the engagement page e.g key dates or the FAQ)   

o High level key themes from the public feedback include: 
▪ Issues with access to NHS dentistry and GP services, although some reports of 

easier access where online booking is available for non-urgent issues 
▪ Workforce shortages and staff turnover across GP, pharmacy and dental services 

affecting personalised care; medications not always ready on time and concern over 
closure of local pharmacies. 

▪ Overall good feedback for optometry where people have been able to access it 
however many people are unaware NHS provision. Overall good feedback for 
pharmacy provision. 

The wealth of insights from this engagement as well as supporting documents such as the Current 
State Report have informed the current version of the Strategy that was published on the engagement 
portal on10 January 2024.  The draft of the full document and executive summary are attached. 
Following feedback that there had not been adequate time for engagement and for all voices to be 
accurately reflected, the ICB have committed to a structured programme of further engagement 
including.  

• Continuation of the ‘Primary care Conversation’ through the online portal with the publication of 
the draft strategy and accompanying survey, including an executive summary and easy read 
version 

• Targeted community focus groups  

• Public Webinars  

• Cascade through Healthwatch, VCSE alliance and partners  

• Integrated Care Partnership Board  

• BOB joint Health, Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

• Place based partnerships / Place Executive meetings  

• Health and Wellbeing Boards  

• System CEOs (Trust Boards / Governors as appropriate)  

Page 26

https://yourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com/primary-care-strategy


 

Page 3 of 3 
 

• BOB system Clinical Advisory Group  

• GPs, Community Pharmacists, Optometrists and Dentists in BOB  

• ICB Board workshop session (19 March) 

• Whole system workshop including actions to progress (20 March) 

• ICB Board final sign off (May 24) 
 
 

Action required:    
The BOB JHOSC members are asked to: 

• Note the work undertaken by the ICB and Partners to develop the Primary Care Strategy  
• Discuss the content themes and any further points for consideration and/or of concern.   
• Identify additional opportunities to engage.   

 

Author: Louise Smith, BOB ICB Deputy Director Primary Care   
 

Date of paper: 9 January 2024 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Transforming Primary Care

General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry 

P
age 29

A
ppendix 



2

We want to hear your views on this draft strategy

This draft strategy is based on research, analysis and engagement carried out in the second half of 2023. We 

are publishing it in draft form to seek feedback from people living and working in BOB. We would like to hear 

thoughts on the questions below or any aspect of the strategy. 

Do these reflect your understanding and/or experience of Primary Care?Challenges

Vision

Priorities

Delivery approach

Do you understand the vision and why it is important? 

Do you think that these priorities will start to address the challenges that have been identified?

Is there anything additional you would like to see included to enhance the outlined delivery approach?

P
age 30



3

Foreword

BOB ICS has put the four pillars of Primary Care – General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and 

Dentistry at the heart of transformation to deliver a shared ambition and vision for a new model of care and a 

more integrated way of working across the system.

We are delighted to introduce our draft Primary Care Strategy, setting out how we plan to move towards a more preventative and community-based model of providing health and care 

services and helping people to stay well in the community. We want to thank our workforce and the public for all the input and feedback that you have given so far. 

Our ambition for a new model of primary and community-based care was first outlined in our Integrated Care Strategy (published in March 2023) and then in our Five Year Joint Forward 

Plan (published in July 2023). Nationally and globally, a direction of travel has been set for Primary Care, including the Fuller Stocktake, which describes how primary care should 

streamline access, provide continuity of care and focus more on prevention. 

We want to improve these areas by better integrating all pillars of Primary Care within our wider system. As a first priority, we want everyone who lives in BOB to be able to receive the right 

support when it is needed and with the right health and/or care professional. We have heard how our communities are finding it more difficult to get an appointment in General Practice or 

with an NHS dentist, and we are determined to make this better. Alongside this, we will continue to bring together Integrated Neighbourhood Teams to care for those people who would 

benefit most from proactive, personalised care from a holistic team of professionals, for example those at most risk of emergency hospital admissions. We want to help communities stay 

well and so we will also have a targeted focus on our biggest killer and driver of inequalities – Cardiovascular Disease. All pillars of primary care can make a huge contribution to supporting 

people to reduce the risk factors like high blood pressure. 

So far, in developing our Primary Care strategy, we have engaged with many stakeholders across the system including those who work at the frontline of primary care. We 

understand the pressure on staff, and as we adopt the new ways of working outlined in this strategy, we will track the impact on staff satisfaction. Moving towards a more 

community-based and preventative health and care system will require a fundamental shift of activity, resource and funding, and the changes in this strategy are intended to support 

that shift. 

Thank you for taking the time to read this strategy, your feedback is essential to help us get this right, so we can produce a final strategy that sets out an agreed shared vision for 

our system, with the commitment from all partners to the changes needed to get there. 

P
age 31



4

Contents 

Our Approach to Delivery

• Delivery Programme approach

• System-wide Priorities 

• Action plans

Our Shared Vision for Primary Care

• Vision for new models of care 

• Enablers to support new ways of working

Primary Care in BOB today

• Strengths and challenges today

Introduction  

• Scope of this strategy

• Engagement and analysis to date

Oversight of Progress

• Delivery structure

• Outcome Metrics Scorecard

01

02

03

04

Pg. 5

Pg. 9

Pg. 18

Pg. 31

05
Pg. 51

P
age 32



5

This section outlines the work that has been 

done to date to develop this draft strategy. It 

describes research and analysis that has 

been carried out, and engagement that has 

been undertaken across all system partners 

and with the public – although this is just the 

beginning. This draft strategy is being 

published and shared widely to hear further 

feedback from people who live and work 

in BOB.   

Introduction

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 33



6

Why we need a primary care strategy 

156 GP 
practices

51 primary care 

networks 

Population of nearly 

2 million 

203 dental 

practices 

Primary Care includes General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry services. These services provide the first point of contact, 

have an ongoing connection with local communities, and lead on improving the ‘whole person’ health of our population.

BOB ICS is putting primary care at the heart of our transformation, to 

deliver our vision set out in the Integrated Care Strategy:

Everyone who lives in BOB should have the best possible start 

in life, live happier, healthier lives for longer and be able to 

access the right support when they need it.

We currently deliver some outstanding primary care, but services are 

under considerable pressure. We 

have inequalities in outcomes for our patients, workforce gaps and 

high workload. 

A national direction has been set to integrate Primary Care provision. 

We have developed this strategy to address the challenges we are 

facing in Primary Care and improve integration between all of our 

pillars in Primary Care and how they work together to deliver the 

new model of care. This strategy will also cover how Primary Care will 

work with system partners such as community services, to deliver our 

future vision. Therefore, this strategy is aimed at multiple different 

audiences – people who use Primary Care services, our staff who 

work in Primary Care as well as wider system partners,  who will 

contribute to improving integration and collaboration to move to a 

more sustainable Primary Care system.

Approx

253 pharmacies

Primary Care data as of December 2023

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 34



7

Approach to developing 

this draft strategy 

Focus Groups and Surveys 

We carried out focus groups with 

key stakeholders - General 

Practice, Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry, and Dentistry and 

surveyed all pillars of Primary Care 

for their views.

System-wide workshop

Bringing together over 130 

stakeholders from across the 

system to discuss the future vision 

and opportunities for Primary Care. 

Data Analysis 

We have analysed available data 

to understand how people in BOB 

are using services today as well 

as what our workforce looks like. 

First draft of the 

Primary Care Strategy  

This document summarises the key 

challenges facing Primary Care and 

how we plan to address these 

through a change in our model of 

care. We will continue engaging with 

system partners’ and the public to 

hear their views. 

Research on good practice 

We researched global, national and local examples of 

good practice delivery of Primary Care services within 

other systems and within BOB. 

Ongoing engagement

Feeding in all our research and 

engagement so far, we started to 

draft the strategy and continued to 

meet with key stakeholder groups 

to get their input and feedback.

This strategy builds from 

national guidance and 

our own local plans. We 

have carried out 

extensive engagement 

and analysis to inform 

the development of this 

draft primary care 

strategy, which we now 

want to refine through 

further engagement with 

system partners and 

those who live and work 

in BOB.  

Current State Report 

Compiles documents, good 

practice, data analysis and views 

from engagement order to 

describe BOB’s Primary Care 

Landscape.

January 

2024

2022

Spring 

2023

Summer 2023

Autumn 

2023

Winter 2023

National guidance such as The 

Fuller Stocktake 

BOB Integrated Care Strategy and 

Joint Forward Plan 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 35



88

Engagement so far

Since July 2023, we've heard from approximately 150 stakeholders across BOB to 

deepen our understanding of the challenges facing Primary Care and to discuss what 

the future model of care should look like. 

We have been seeking the views of the public through our website. We will analyse 

all comments when they are received but based on what people have told us 

so far, some trends are emerging:

• Some patients report finding it extremely challenging to get an appointment with 

their GP and / or NHS dentist

• Many have positive experiences with their community pharmacy but note that at 

times pharmacists can be very busy

• Generally, patients have reported being happy with services provided by 

optometry.

We have listened and understand the immense pressure that the workforce is facing. 

We have heard what matters most to our staff and most importantly, to our patients. 

We know we can do more as a system to meet the needs of our population and to 

keep people healthy in their communities. Therefore, we are making a commitment 

to do things differently and work more closely with partners to deliver the best 

outcomes for people living in BOB. 

General Practice

Dentistry

Health and 

Wellbeing Boards

Social Care 

Healthwatch

Clinical Networks

Acute providers

Place Directors

Voluntary & Community 

Sector (VCSE)

Community 

Pharmacy

Optometry

Local Authorities

Public Health

Community trusts

Mental Health Providers

ICB Leads

NHS SE Regional Leads

Health Innovation Oxford & 

Thames Valley

Broad engagement across the primary care system has been undertaken 

to understand the current landscape and test the future vision 

(stakeholders shown on the right). We look forward to engaging further 

with BOB residents to refine the strategy.  

Patient and public groups

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Representative Bodies e.g. 

LMC, LPC & LDC

P
age 36

https://yourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com/


9

In this section we describe the current state of 

primary care services in BOB. This is based on 

the engagement activities described on page 8 

and an analysis of data showing how our 

population currently uses the primary care and 

the urgent and emergency care system. 

The section describes the landscape of primary 

care services, highlights some of the strengths 

of our system in BOB, and then summarises the 

challenges we face. The following section then 

outlines how we need to work differently to 

address these challenges. 

Primary Care in BOB today

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 37



10

Primary care supports our communities

Health needs and inequalities 

Across BOB, 3 in 5 adults are overweight or obese. 68% of 

adults with a learning disability are overweight. 

Around 12% of adults have a recorded diagnosis of 

depression and 0.8% have a severe mental illness. 

c.60,000 people in BOB live in an area that is in the bottom 

20% of areas nationally as defined by deprivation. 

Estimated 60% of people over 60 have one or more long term 

conditions. 

People in our more deprived areas develop poor health 10-15 

years earlier than those in less. 

BOB has 8.8 care home beds per 100 people 75+ in 

comparison to the national average of 10.8 as well as a slightly 

smaller 16+ population with a caring responsibility.

There is a disproportionate reliance on acute services e.g. 

A&E from populations living in areas of higher deprivation.

Primary care supports our unique and varied 

communities with a wide range of needs and 

helps to tackle the health inequalities some 

communities experience

Our population

Our overall population size is 

anticipated to grow by 5% by 2042, 

over the same period the number of 

people aged over 65 is expected to 

increase by 37%. 

People who identify as white British 

make up 73% of residents. Although 

this varies from 53% in Reading to 

85% in West Berkshire.

Within BOB, Oxfordshire and 

Buckinghamshire will continue to 

have the highest proportion of over 

75 year olds.

1: BOB fact pack (2022); 2: BOB Joint Forward Plan (2023)

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 38



11

Primary care is at the heart of our system

Not only is primary care the typical ‘front door’ for our population to access the health system, it also carries out 90% of all patient contacts. Below is 

a selection of facts about primary care activity.

1: Clinical workload in UK primary care: a retrospective analysis of 100 million consultations in England, 2007–14 (2016); 2: NHS Digital (2023); 3: Brookside Case study – Segmentation in Primary Care (2023); 4: BBOB LMC The 

Health of General Practice in BOB (2023); 5: NHS Dental Workforce statistics and NHS Digital (2023); NHS dentistry - Health and Social Care Committee (parliament.uk) 6,7: Primary Care Access and Recovery Plan (2023)    

01

02

03

04

The equivalent of 19% of the population in BOB contact their 

practice every working week. General practice activity levels in 

BOB are higher than pre-pandemic levels with 825,000 

appointments each month.

There are approximately 1,100 GPs, 430 nurses and over 900 

staff in the Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS) 

across BOB, including Social Prescribers, Clinical Pharmacists, 

Nursing Associates and Mental Health Practitioners.

05

06

In Berkshire West, approximately 73% of the population are 

‘generally well’, 19% have moderate need and 2.4% have higher 

need (based on Population Health Management data from 

Brookside Group Practice, 2023).

Primary care supports a registered population of around 

584,000- people in Berkshire West, 587,000 people in 

Buckinghamshire, and 816,000 people in Oxfordshire.

Across BOB, there are on average 63 dentists per 100,000 of the 

population compared to a national average of 43 NHS dentists 

per 100,000.

There are 253 community pharmacies offering a range of 

clinical services e.g. flu and COVID-19 vaccines, blood pressure 

checks, oral contraception.

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 39

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm5803/cmselect/cmhealth/964/report.html


12

Our primary care system has many strengths

There is much outstanding practice across primary care in BOB, and unique capabilities across its Places. Below are five highlights where the system 

has particular strengths that can be built upon.  

01
General Practice access 

and quality metrics in 

line with or above the 

national average 

The proportion of GP 

appointments seen within 

14 days is higher than the 

national and regional 

average. Most GP 

practices have either good 

or outstanding CQC 

ratings. Quality and 

Outcomes Framework 

scores are just above 

average. 

02
High uptake of the 

Community Pharmacy 

Consultation Service 

BOB has the third highest 

number of referrals (per 

population) to the 

Community Pharmacy 

Consultation Service 

across the Southeast 

region. 122 of the 156 GP 

practices are ‘live’ and 

referring their patients to 

community pharmacists, 

with a further 27 preparing 

to start using this service 

(as of December 2023). 

03
Strong focus on 

inequalities, prevention, 

and wider determinants

of health 

All three Place-based 

Partnerships have focused 

on this. For example, 

‘Opportunity Bucks’ targets 

the 10 most deprived areas 

in Buckinghamshire. 

Oxfordshire work focuses 

on specific communities 

such as people who are 

homeless. In Berkshire 

West community outreach 

is focused on reducing 

premature mortality.

04
Population Health 

Management 

Infrastructure

In parts of BOB, the 

Connected Care model has 

been developed with the 

addition of Population 

Health Management tools 

and is enabling people to 

be directed to the most 

appropriate health and care 

service, based on their 

needs. This supports better 

triage and navigation, 

identification of people who 

would benefit from 

intensive case 

management, and ability to 

design prevention 

interventions.

05
Flexible dentistry 

commissioning for our 

most vulnerable 

populations and 

extended commissioning 

for Minor Eye Conditions

BOB has started a pilot for 

flexible commissioning, 

where 10% of the contract 

can vary depending on 

local needs. This has 

enabled practitioners to 

service patients from under 

served communities who 

require dental care. 

Additionally, there has 

been great uptake of the 

referrals to the Minor Eye 

Conditions service and 

patient feedback has been 

positive.

06
Strength of existing at-

scale delivery structures 

Each Place has a Placed-

Based-Partnership 

(including local 

authorities, VCSE and 

others) which can drive 

and deliver transformation 

and integration at a local 

level. There are evolving 

Federations of General 

Practices established in 

each Place – FedBucks, 

PML in parts of 

Oxfordshire and the 

Primary Care Alliance in 

parts of Berkshire West 

that can lead change and 

deliver services for a large 

part of the population. 

1: NHS Digital (2023); 2: Primary Care Access and Recovery Plan (2023); 3: Brookside Case study – Segmentation in Primary Care (2023)

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 40



13

There are challenges within primary care and within the wider 

system that require new ways of working

19%

There are estates pressures 

across the system for example, 

in Bucks, approximately 

570,000 patients are served by 

a primary care estate of 

approximately 24,121 m2. 

19% said there were no 

dental appointments 

available or said that the 

dentist was not taking on 

any new patients.2

14 community pharmacies 

closed in 2023 and 16 out of 20 

100hr pharmacies reduced their 

opening hours (mainly the 9pm-

12am slot).6

Demand for primary care outstrips current capacity and inefficiencies are created (for patients and staff) where the parts of the system do not work 

well together. The challenges require a system response, they cannot be solved by primary care alone.

Many primary care staff feel 

they are under extreme 

pressure

Capacity is difficult to grow 

due to funding, recruitment, 

retention and estates 

challenges

This is driven by a mismatch 

between demand and 

capacity across the system

People report a worsening 

experience of accessing 

primary care

67%

In the Community 

Pharmacy workforce 

survey, 67% of 

respondents said it is 

very difficult to fill vacant 

roles for pharmacists.7

BOB LMC data shows that GPs 

are responsible for more 

patients, and are spending a 

large proportion of time on 

administrative tasks relating to 

how patients move between 

parts of the system. 3

Since 2021, there has 

been a 19% decrease in 

positive responses with 

regards to the overall 

experience of booking an 

appointment.1

BOB’s growing population and 

changing demographic profile is 

increasing demand for primary 

care services - more than one in 

four of the adult population live 

with more than two long term 

conditions.5

01 02 03 04

Multiple respondents to the BOB 

dental survey said they are 

under extreme pressure due to 

demand much greater than 

capacity, lack of funding and 

recruitment and retention 

challenges.

1: National GP survey results, 2023; 2: BOB GP Patient Survey Dental Statistics 2023; 3: BBOB LMC The Health of General Practice in BOB; 4: BOB Primary Care Assurance Report 2023/24 Quarter 2 (2023);

5: BOB Joint Forward Plan (2023); 6: Buckinghamshire Executive Partnership Report on Primary Care July 2023; 7: Community Pharmacy Workforce Survey 2022; 8: OCCG Primary Care Estates Strategy (2020)

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 41



14

If we do nothing, the mismatch between demand and capacity will 

continue to grow

Over the next 10 years the population of BOB will increase, particularly the older population who make the greatest use of healthcare services. If 

there is no change to the model of care, based on historic trends in primary care activity and population forecasts, GP appointments would need to 

increase by 55%. This would represent an unsustainable level of growth in terms of available funding and workforce, and Primary Care cannot 

manage this demand alone. This requires a system-wide response to work in new ways and coordinate care and services differently.

BOB Forecast Population Growth to 2034 for Over 65s and Over 85s 

332,095

404,582

49,884

72,460

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033

P
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

Over 65s Over 85s

+ 20%

+ 45%

10,090,641 

15,610,426 

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

 18,000,000

2022/23 2033/34

A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

BOB ICB General Practice Appointments (All Types – 2022/23 vs 2033/34)

55%

KPMG analysis, based on ONS population projections 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 42



15

Snapshot of what we have heard from the public so far

Lots of patients mentioned they struggle to 

access an NHS Dentist. 

Some patients said they are opting to go 

private or not attend a dentist due to being 

unable to access NHS provision.

Some patients said they are unable to get a 

GP appointment or have to wait for long 

periods of time, or are only able to call at 

certain times. 

Patients reported a high turnover of staff in 

General Practice and said they are often 

unable to see the same doctor for treatments. 

This makes them feel it is hard to build 

relationships and results in a lack of trust.

Some patients felt like they were being 

blocked from accessing a GP by the 

receptionist or triage booking system. Some 

Patients stated they felt it was unnecessary or 

embarrassing having to explain symptoms on 

the phone and in person.

We listen to what patients say about primary care through a wide variety of forums including our local Healthwatch organisations. 

Below are the high-level themes that have emerged from early analysis of comments received via BOB ICB’s public engagement 

website during November and December 2023.

Getting to see a nurse at the surgery is 

adequate but GPs are still difficult to see in 

person. More needs to be done at surgery level 

so those of us not living in Oxford don't have to 

do a five hour round trip on buses to get to the 

"local" hospital.

I have had a lot of experience accessing PC on 

behalf of my elderly mother. There is a lack of 

joined up services following hospital discharge 

and provision of care at home for a 97 year old. 

Overall feedback for optometry from patients 

who have accessed services was good. 

Patients reported a lack of awareness of NHS 

provision for optometry (eye health). 

There was positive feedback on the use of the 

NHS App to communicate with GP surgeries 

and for prescriptions.

Patients often stated long queues and wait 

times at their Pharmacy. 

Patients stated that online GP booking is not 

always accessible for certain demographics 

of patients. 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 43



16

We are learning from other systems who have tackled these 

challenges

We have reviewed good practice from other systems globally, nationally, and locally to understand the key features that have enabled them to tackle 

the same challenges we face. These features are summarised here, and the next page shines a spotlight on one particular example.

Systems tended to emphasise high-quality trusted information and digital tools to support 

people to self-care. People can access services in many ways but are triaged to ensure they 

reach the right part of the system, and their initial contact can be with a broad range of multi-

skilled professionals. Pathways are standardised across system and supported by digital tools. 

Self Care
Triage & 

Navigation
Initial Contact

Identification Assessment Management Evaluation 

Population Health 

Needs Analysis  
Opportunity Analysis Intervention Selection

Implementation and 

Evaluation

Commissioning and 

Incentive Alignment

Systems tended to have a standardised approach to identify patients 

with or at risk of medical or social complexity, provide regular holistic 

assessments, co-develop personalised care plans and regularly 

evaluate outcomes and experience for this cohort.

Systems tended to have a strategic and 

data-driven approach to prevention that 

identifies population groups with similar 

risks, identifies and selects interventions to 

improve the outcomes of all groups, 

evaluates to see what has worked, and 

aligns financial and other incentives to help 

scale successful interventions. 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 44



17

Learning from the Clalit System 

Within BOB we have taken particular inspiration from the Clalit system in Israel, which has produced impressive outcomes by taking a primary care 

led approach. Some of the key features of the system are described here, and as a system we must take the learnings and coordinate a system-wide 

approach. 

Israel’s life expectancy is 0.9 years higher than in the UK, while national 

health expenditure is 7.8% of Gross Domestic Product (GDP), compared to 

9.8% in the UK (2019 figures). The Israeli model is primary care led, and 

accounts for a greater proportion of expenditure than hospital care. 

The Israeli healthcare system provides universal coverage through four not-

for-profit Health Maintenance Organisations (HMOs), which can be compared 

to the UK’s Integrated Care Systems. The largest HMO is Clalit. 

Key features of the Clalit system: 

• Integrated GP community clinics, including all professionals in one setting

• Direct hospital-to-community communication, enabled by fully interoperable 

data sharing system including online health records and results

• Proactive nurse-led health and wellness activities informed by health data

• Use of population health metrics to determine health policy decision making

• Payment is on a salaried or capitated basis, to incentivise the management 

of the population’s health as effectively as possible in the lowest cost 

setting.

• Clinicians are paid more to work in rural or areas, which typically in Israel 

are home to more vulnerable groups.

Professor Ran Balicer, MD, PhD, MPH, Director, Health Policy Planning, Clalit Health Services

1984 1986 1988 1990 1992 1994 1996 1998 2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010

50

46

42

38

34

30

48

44

40

36

32

Israel Central Bureau of Statistics

Community 
clinics and 
preventive 
care

Hospitals

Hospital vs. community care, percentage total health expenditure

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 45



18

This section sets out the way in which we need to 

change our model of care and work differently to 

address the challenges described. It is based on 

reviewing how those systems that deliver the best 

outcomes for their populations work, and engaging 

with those working and using services in BOB. 

We describe both the components of the new 

model of care and the enablers that need to be in 

place to deliver these. The new model of care 

aims to achieve specific outcomes and we have 

developed a scorecard (section 5) to track our 

performance against these outcomes. 

Our Shared Vision for Primary Care

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 46



19

Our shared system vision for primary care

The challenges – and opportunities – facing primary care result from complex system-wide factors and a whole system response is required. BOB’s 

Joint Forward Plan commits the system to developing new models of care and primary care is at the heart of that. This is our future vision for primary 

care, but it requires other system partners to also work differently to deliver it.  

Our Shared Vision: 

Everyone in BOB has the support they need from primary care, working within a coordinated and integrated health and care system that supports people to stay well.

Enablers

Digital and data – Shared patient records are being used across the system to aid safe and effective clinical decision making based on real-time information

Resourcing – Resources have shifted from hospital settings into community settings and our contracts are joined up and based on outcomes that integrated services 

deliver.

Estates – We are making the best use of Public Estate and community assets to support primary care delivery.

Model of Care

We ensure people get to the right support first time 

to meet their needs 

We provide personalised, proactive care for people 

with complex needs, supported by Integrated 

Neighbourhood Teams

We design targeted support for everyone to stay well 

by understanding our population by a review of the 

information 

General Practice Pharmacy Optometry Dentistry

Primary Care

Workforce – Multi-skilled extended primary care teams work in an integrated way, at the heart of the system, and as part of integrated neighbourhood teams; flexible 

working is maximised; and workforce wellbeing is prioritised

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 47



20

How will it feel for primary care staff? 

• I have had a mixed week with a higher level of 

complexity overall but no more than 12 consultations 

per session. 

• My patients are appropriately and efficiently triaged. 

This is increasingly via digital triage although phone and 

walk in are also available. 

• I have experienced a large reduction in interface work 

as all providers can complete their 

bloods/requests/investigations. 

• I am supervising a team of allied health professionals 

regularly each week, to manage risk and support their 

development.  

• Administrative tasks are now completed by non-

clinicians who work as part of a dedicated team to 

answer patient queries.

• I have the option to subspecialise and work in the 

same day access hub covering a larger geography. 

• Some other GP colleagues are part of an Integrated 

Neighborhood Team, managing patients with 

complexity. Overall there is much greater access to 

secondary care consultants in line with the 

neighbourhood way of working.

• I have greater influence over the community around 

us. I see the development of community infrastructure 

as the first line response for more issues, rather than 

general practice or another acute setting.

Consultants in 

general practice

• I feel so much more empowered when patients 

come to me with health issues.

• I can use my health care knowledge to assess 

their condition. 

• I am now able to prescribe them with medication 

such as oral contraception. 

• I also now carry out hypertension management 

of many more patients as part of a local 

cardiovascular prevention scheme with my 

system colleagues. 

• As part of this, I have the resources for health 

promotion to help educate those I see. I can 

even point them in the direction of local services 

like weight loss management in the community.

• The system I use is so much more simple now. I 

can view the patient notes and update their 

record – if a patient I see appears to be high risk, 

I can easily refer them to the GP.

• I also sit as part of an INT weekly meeting where 

I build personalised care plans for a local frail 

population cohort who we are managing closely 

to prevent them going to hospital.

Community 

Pharmacist 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 48



21

How will it feel for primary care staff? 

• As part of my role, and as part of the wider 

prevention agenda, I support CVD/Diabetes 

screening, deliver dentistry in care homes, and also 

provide prevention advice for young children. 

• I have educational resources to provide my 

patients and can point them in the direction of 

activities going on in the community such as 

Local Stop Smoking Services to support with 

their broader health and wellbeing.

• The system I use has been updated and I can 

update my patients’ notes and view their drug 

histories. There are also easier referral pathways 

into secondary care.

Dentist 

Community 

District Nurse 

• I provide nursing assessments and care for 

housebound patients with a physical healthcare 

need. We see patients at home and in residential 

care settings.

• I work with colleagues across the system on a day 

to day basis to manage patients with complexity, 

as part of an Integrated Neighbourhood Team  

• I regularly communicate with the clinical lead 

when I have a complex case. 

• I enjoy being part of MDT meetings as we 

proactively manage care for patients and also 

provide more personalised care. 

• I can access, update and share my patients’ notes 

with the other team members I am working with. 

• A patient comes to my practice for a routine 

sight test. 

• They tell me that they are diabetic now and that 

their medication has changed - they can’t 

remember what the exact changes are.

• I have a view of their patient record and can see 

their diabetic status is accurate and can see 

what medication they are now on for diabetes 

and blood pressure.

• I can update my records accurately and be on 

the look out for diabetic retinopathy or 

hypertensive changes. 

• I can notify the GP easily through the shared 

record interface of any retinopathy or ocular side 

effects of their medication. 

• I can also highlight if the patient is overdue a 

diabetic check.

• It is so much easier having access to a digital 

patient record. Without it you have to go by what 

people remember and what they feel is relevant.

• Communicating directly with the GP digitally 

improves the accuracy of information and 

therefore patient care.

Optometrist 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 49



22

How will it feel for patients? 

• My husband has dementia and has recently 

become very ill with more symptoms - he is 

completely dependent on me and struggles to 

communicate. 

• Over the past month, I have been supported by a 

team to care for my husband.

• I now have a direct line to the Care Coordinator 

and we have regular calls so I can share any of 

my concerns or let the care coordinator know if 

anything has changed.

• The Care Coordinator liaises closely with my 

usual GP and Proactive Care Nurse and 

arranges visits as necessary This team regularly 

updates my husband’s care plan, using any 

information I have shared with them.

• It has been a really difficult time with my husband 

becoming very unwell, but to some extent my 

worries are eased knowing I have direct contact 

with the same team on a regular basis who know 

my husband well and can consider any personal 

factors in his care.

• Additionally, just the other day, a volunteer from 

a local charity visited to chat with me and has 

connected me to other people living as a carer / 

have family members with dementia locally.

Susan, aged 82

• I have a UTI and am experiencing painful 

symptoms. I contact my GP via an app 

downloaded to my mobile phone.

• I have requested to see my GP as I think I might 

need antibiotics after experiencing symptoms for 

a couple days .  

• The app has told me I can go straight to my local 

pharmacy which is convenient for me as I can 

walk there during my lunchbreak.

• I visited my local pharmacy and they gave me 

antibiotics. 

• My patient record is automatically updated so my 

GP knows I have received this treatment. 

Sonny, aged 8
• My child has high needs and is at a specialist 

educational needs setting. 

• Healthcare professionals are carrying out 

preventative health checks at the school. 

• A mobile dental unit has visited the school to 

provide dental and oral health services which is 

convenient.

• A Community development worker recently 

visited my family at home to provide additional 

information, advice and guidance.

Danielle, aged 25

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 50



23

We ensure people get to the right support first time to 

meet their needs 

Our vision is that people who contact the health system will be directed to the right health and care support to meet their needs first time – so that 

might not necessarily be a GP but the right health care professional and in the right place. 

The challenge today – using General Practice as an example

Supporting all our communities to access the high-quality 

information available on the NHS website. 

Signposting to this from community centres, health services, 

GP websites and apps, and through targeted outreach. 

Initial contact is with the right professional / service, which could 

be a virtual or face to face appointment with a (for example): 

✓ GP, Nurse, Physio or other staff member 

✓ Community Pharmacist, Optometrist or Dentist

✓ Urgent Care/Treatment Centre for minor injuries

✓ Weight management, audiology, or podiatry service

✓ VCSE and mental health services 

Supported by digitally-enabled communication between these 

different clinicians and services. 

Self-management Initial contactTriage & navigation

When people request support (e.g. through GP online form, 

by calling 111) care coordinators can triage the request – with 

clinical supervision – and direct it to the right place. 

Supported by digital triage tools, some of which use Artificial 

Intelligence, and backed by Population Health data that helps 

teams understand the health needs of the person 

requesting care. 

People report a worsening experience getting to the primary 

care support they need and are frustrated when they feel 

they are ‘bounced around the system’. 

Across BOB, patients having a good experience of 

making a GP appointment has decreased by 19%

When people find it difficult to get a GP or dentist 

appointment, they report that they sometimes go to A&E.

In the BOB ICS GP National Survey, people said:

Our future vision

went to A&E when they couldn’t get a GP 

appointment

visited A&E instead when the GP practice was 

closed

10% 

30% 

Staff feel under extreme pressure 

and some of the burden comes 

from a lack of smooth processes 

as people move between different 

parts of the system and can end up 

requiring multiple appointments 

before they get to the right place. 

Staff in General Practice in BOB 

would like to spend more time 

on prevention and chronic 

disease management:

41
%

9%

44
%

24%

Chronic
care

Prevention

Current

Future

55%

74%

2023

2021

1:BOB GP National Survey (2023); 2: Survey shared with General Practices across BOB as part of Primary Care Strategy work

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Right Support Proactive care Prevention Enablers

P
age 51



24

There are lots of examples in BOB that demonstrate how we better navigate people to the right support. Below, we have described two initiatives 

already in place that help to  ensure people get to the right care and support, first time. 

Changing how we work so people get the right support first 

time

• The NHS Community Pharmacist Consultation Service (CPCS) 

supports patients to access a same day appointment at their 

community pharmacist for minor illness or with urgent requests for 

routine medicine. The service also enables pharmacists to refer 

patients to an alternative service should it be required.

• This approach is well-utilised in BOB, which has the second highest 

number of referrals in the South East, relative to population, with over 

three-quarters of practices using this scheme to refer their patients to 

Community Pharmacists. There was a 5% increase in the number of 

referrals that were made in September 2023, with BOB the only ICB 

to see an increase. 

• This service has multiple benefits for the system:

• Increases patient access to primary care services;

• Is more convenient where community pharmacies are often 

closer to patients’ homes;

• Helps to ease pressure on GPs and emergency departments; 

and

• Contributes to improving staff satisfaction where the service 

utilises the skills and medicines knowledge of pharmacists.

Directing patients to Community Pharmacy

• Brookside Group Practice use data to understand the needs of 

their population. 

• As shown below, 77% of Brookside’s population has generally 

low needs – these people tend to have a non-complex 

requirement when they contact their GP, for example, a 

Urinary Tract Infection (UTI). 

• Brookside call this group ‘green’ patients and support them 

through an urgent care team or by directing them to community 

pharmacy. 

• Shifting ‘green’ activity to other places has allowed General 

Practice to spend more time seeing people with more complex 

needs. This reduces demand for primary care and A&E 

because their health is better managed.  

• This approach has increased staff satisfaction as skills and 

interests can be matched with particular work, and they have 

the option to rotate between teams for more variety.

Using data to get patients the right support in Brookside 

Population proportion by patient need group

76.9%

20.4%

2.6%

Lower Need Group Moderate Need
Group

Higher Need
Group

%
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

Brookside Case study – Segmentation in Primary Care (2023); NHS Community Pharmacist Consultation Service (CPCS) – integrating pharmacy into urgent care; BOB Primary Care Assurance Report 2023/24 

Quarter 2 (2023)

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Right Support Proactive care EnablersPrevention

P
age 52

https://www.england.nhs.uk/primary-care/pharmacy/pharmacy-integration-fund/community-pharmacist-consultation-service/


25

We provide personalised, proactive care for people with complex 

needs, supported by Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

Our vision is to have Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTs) made up of professionals from a range of disciplines, operating at the appropriate 

scale, to support people with more complex needs to stay well in their communities. 

GP

Community 

Matron

District Nurse 

& Therapy 

Practice 

Nurse

Social worker

Social 

Prescriber

To manage the challenges on the left, we need to move 

towards a more community-based model. This will require the 

system to shift resource from secondary care into the 

community and will impact the way the whole system works, 

especially secondary care with Primary Care. INTs will be the 

delivery vehicle for this model and our specialist workforce e.g. 

secondary care consultants, mental health, social care 

providers, VCSE sector, primary and community care, will have 

a key role to play in the INT. We will need to ensure job plans 

are aligned and resources and time commitment are agreed 

upfront.

INTs will support a defined group in the population who have 

complex needs and are at risk of experiencing the poorest 

outcomes. They work together with the individual to develop 

and deliver a personalised care plan, making sure they can 

access the support (medical and non-medical) they need. 

System partners work together to provide resources (staff, 

estates, funding) to these teams that come together regularly 

(daily or weekly), virtually and physically.

The footprint for these teams will be determined locally – 

with input from a range of system partners – using 

population health data to identify cohorts who will benefit the 

most.

Dentist

Community 

Pharmacist 

Optometrist 

People’s health needs are changing and many live 

with multiple long term conditions where traditional 

disease-specific care is not the best model. 

“More than one in four of the adult population live 

with more than two long term conditions”1

Many issues that affect people’s health are not 

purely medical and require input from multiple parts 

of the public sector, for example housing, benefits.  

“The Buckinghamshire population have higher 

levels of social isolation”2

Where people’s needs are not well-managed, they 

often end up requiring more urgent and costly 

treatment, that doesn’t provide a positive 

experience or improve longer term outcomes. 

Groups from more deprived areas tend to end up 

using the emergency care system more. 

“Higher acuity patients now make up a greater 

proportion of A&E activity than 4 years ago”3

The challenge today

Team of colleagues from a range of contributing organisations  

Our future vision

Mental Health 

Practitioner

1: BOB Joint Forward Plan (2023); 2: BOB fact pack and BOB Integrated Care Strategy (2023); 3: BOB ICB ECDS Data V2 (2023)

First contact 

physiotherapist

Geriatrician

Paediatrician

Psychiatrist

Occupational 

therapist

Care 

Coordinator

Patient supported by an 

Integrated Neighbourhood 

team who know them well 

and provide continuity 

of care 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Right Support Proactive care EnablersPrevention

VCSE

P
age 53



26

Below, we have described two initiatives already in place that are providing integrated holistic support to people with complex needs. 

Changing how we work so people with complex needs receive 

personalised, proactive care

• The INT has been in development since October 2021 

and consists of 2 funded GPs who cover 7 sessions 

a week. 

• The team is comprised of staff members from Oxford 

Health, social services, community services, community 

therapies and others

• The INT provides two streams of care: 1) enhanced care 

for patients who have been discharged from hospital 

and require care to avoid readmission and 2) proactive 

care to improve access to patients who can’t access 

services easily e.g. frail patients with acute illness.

• The team conduct a daily ward round to understand who 

has been seen the previous day and who needs 

support. Staff are able to call Oxford University Hospital 

if they have any patient cases with medical complexity 

and need expert advice and guidance. 

Bicester Integrated Neighbourhood Team

• To improve seamless access to care and support, 

Frimley Health and Care introduced an integrated care 

model. The integrated team is proactive, providing in-

reach into hospitals to enable people to return to the 

community as soon as they're ready.

• The INT model has a single point of access with a joint 

triage and assessment mechanism. 

• INT meetings are focused on supporting people at high 

risk of hospital admission and with complex needs.

• The team consists of key roles such as GPs, mental 

health workers, social workers, nurses and rehab 

practitioners. Input is included from the voluntary sector, 

ambulance service, pharmacists and psychology. 

• Outcomes that have been achieved so far are: care 

home admissions have been reduced by 12%, GP 

referrals into hospitals reduced by 13% and elective 

admissions to hospital reduced by 5%.

Frimley’s Integrated Care Model

1: Future of General Practice, Oxfordshire event slides; 2: frimley-case-study.pdf (nice.org.uk) 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Right Support Proactive care EnablersPrevention

P
age 54



27

We design targeted support for everyone to stay well by 

understanding our population by a review of the information 

Our vision is to share and use data to inform targeted approaches to improve our population’s health, working in partnership with our Local 

Authorities and making every primary care contact count. 

Our future vision

Primary Care supports people from the beginning to the end of life, and prevention and health 

promotion are key throughout. Whether it’s stopping people becoming unwell in the first place, 

preventing ill health progressing, or minimising the impact of poor health. 

All four Primary Care pillars – General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry – 

have a critical role to play in prevention activities and the promotion of living a healthy life in local 

communities. With the right data being shared and discussed between all system partners, including 

Local Authorities, there is an opportunity to maximise preventative activities and deliver more 

personalised care. These include opportunistic activity – like blood pressure monitoring during eye 

checks, and proactive activity – like community pharmacy reaching out to those who may have 

undiagnosed high blood pressure, or dental checks in early years settings. There is also an 

opportunity to tackle the social, economic and environmental factors that affect health by supporting 

people to live healthier lives – like increasing access to tobacco dependency services and weight 

management services. However, we recognise the need to release capacity, before we can optimise 

our workforce’s full potential to deliver more preventative activity. Our future integrated model of care 

should help overcome this barrier.

In order to make and sustain a shift towards a more preventative system, we will use data to drive 

our decision making. We will embed a strategic and system-wide Population Health Management 

(PHM) approach to allow us to understand the health needs across our system and identify our most 

vulnerable and at risk groups - those who experience the poorest outcomes and inequalities. With 

this understanding, we will work with communities to design the right support for the population 

group we are looking at. We’ll evaluate and scale what works and stop or change what doesn’t. 

The challenge today

60,000 living in a deprived area, who 

develop poor health 10-15 years earlier 

than those in less deprived areas.

Approximately 11% of BOB’s 

population are active smokers, with 

nearly 8% of pregnant women 

actively smoking. 

Across BOB, 3 in 5 adults are 

overweight or obese. 68% of adults 

with a learning disability are 

overweight.

In BOB, there were 115k alcohol 

attributable admissions to hospitals 

between 2016/7 and 2020/21.

Nearly 18% of BOB’s population 

undertake less than 30 minutes of 

physical activity per week. 

1: BOB Joint Forward Plan (2023); 2: Fingertips Public Health Data (2023)

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Right Support Proactive care EnablersPrevention

P
age 55



28

Changing how we work so we can use data to understand our 

population, and to design targeted support for everyone to stay well

There are lots of examples in BOB that demonstrate how we can use data to drive prevention activity. Below, we have described two initiatives 

already in place where system partners are working together to make a difference to specific communities and tackle inequalities. 

Population health data analysis of people with Type 2 diabetes pinpointed 

poorer outcomes for some patients in South Reading in the Nepalese 

community who had a lower uptake of the standard NHS diabetes 

education offer.

Working with the Greater Reading Nepalese Community Association, a 

programme was created that: 

• Provides group consultations and education, delivered in Nepalese

• Hosted a Pressure Station at a football tournament to encourage 

visitors to get a blood pressure check and further support - the GPs, 

along with their surgery staff and local volunteers conducted 90 mini 

health checks over the course of the tournament, measuring BMI, blood 

glucose and blood pressure. 

• Has promoted health and preventative healthcare advice and identified 

new cases of possible hypertension and diabetes.

A specialist nurse, who is Nepalese and understands some of the cultural 

variants within that community, delivers the programme.

Nepalese community prevention activity

The Community Dental Services team in Oxfordshire take a proactive 

approach to offering services, particularly in the ten most deprived wards.

They have visited parent sessions at primary schools, Banbury Mosque, 

Health walks, Dementia support group (online), Community Hubs, food 

banks, children's classes, weight management groups, clinics in the John 

Radcliffe, and the Health on the Move Bus.

They have developed their online presence and promotion of national 

campaigns linked to oral health including National Smile Month and Mouth 

Cancer Action Month. 

The messages, advice and resources that they shared between April 2022 

and March 2023 have been used, seen and accessed over two and half 

million times. 

The team also produce a free monthly newsletter which contains social 

media content around oral health to encourage partners to also share their 

content – this has 157 subscribers.

Oral health outreach in Oxfordshire

1: Reading Football Festival Supports “Know Your Numbers Week” (2023); 2: Oxfordshire Oral Health Needs Assessment (2023)

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Right Support Proactive care EnablersPrevention

P
age 56

https://www.bucksoxonberksw.icb.nhs.uk/news/posts/bob-icb-news/september-2023/reading-football-festival-supports-know-your-numbers-week/
https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/system/files/documents/OHNA_Oxfordshire_FULL_Sept23.pdf


29

Four enablers are essential to delivering this vision

Focusing on the activities described over the next two pages should be a priority for the system, as workforce, digital and data, 

estates and resourcing are critical to deliver the future model of care. 

• Fully understand current and future workforce skills gaps and challenges 

around recruitment and retention particularly in rural areas 

• Develop longer term local plans, building partnerships to develop a sustainable 

supply of locally recruited and trained staff.

• Maximising uptake of apprenticeship roles developing the workforce through 

the apprenticeship levy.  

• Expansion of the coaching and mentoring and ‘looking after you’ programmes 

for all primary care staff and ensuring access to health and wellbeing support.

• A greater focus on continuous professional development and protected learning 

time across primary care.  Specific learning being commissioned according to 

training needs analysis, local and national priorities.

• Enable staff to move seamlessly between provider organising using the ‘BOB’ 

staff passport’ making shared and rotational roles much easier, which in turn 

results in an increase in staff retention as they have a better employment 

experience.

• Looking at Dentistry specifically, exploring different types of contract models to 

encourage recruitment, reviewing the skill mix model to align with new 

prevention priorities and the training required for this, and review of 

commissioning training courses to grow dental workforce. 

• In common with the rest of the country, funding is constrained in 

BOB Integrated Care System, and we need to look at ways to 

use the existing resources we have differently. Where possible, 

will look at how we use funding to focus on areas of higher 

deprivation.

• We know that other systems globally that achieve excellent 

outcomes for their populations have health and care systems that 

spend a far greater proportion of their budgets on primary care 

activities than we do, and this is a shift we are committed to 

making in BOB. 

We plan to do this in two ways:

• By changing the location and type of work our staff do, 

regardless of who they are employed by. For example, a 

respiratory consultant spending time each week with an 

Integrated Neighbourhood Team supporting people experiencing 

breathlessness.

• By changing the way we commission services so that we 

consolidate funding to support providers working together to 

deliver the best outcomes for a defined population – we will begin 

piloting this approach in 2024. 

Workforce Resource 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Right Support Proactive care EnablersPrevention

P
age 57



30

Four enablers are essential to delivering this vision

Digital & data and estates are key enablers to underpin the successful delivery of our future model of care. 

• Make greater use of virtual 

consultations and ‘hub working’ (with 

multiple professionals in same space) 

for non-complex same day care. 

• As part of the ICB plans for a shared 

estates strategy, set a clear 

expectation that both same day 

access hubs and Integrated 

Neighbourhood Teams should make 

use of the best available public estate. 

For example, this could mean a same 

day access hub located at an Urgent 

Care Centre, or an INT located in a 

community health centre. 

• Explore opportunities for partnership 

working between the ICB, Primary 

Care providers and wider local 

system partners, in particular local 

councils, to optimise use of public 

sector estate and community assets, 

and take opportunities to put health 

on the high street

Estates 

Enhancing our digital capabilities across the system will enable us all to work differently, release capacity by minimising existing administrative 

pressures and ensure people have a more seamless journey through the system. Building on the ICB’s Digital and Data Strategy we will:

Digitise Our Providers – deliver the minimum digital foundations across our providers

• Optimise digital triage tools within General Practice to free up time for staff from manual administrative tasks e.g. processing incoming requests for 

patients. This will include training for both clinical and administrative teams to ensure they get the full benefits out of digital tools.

• Carry out engagement on the requirements of GP principle clinical systems in readiness for the closure of the GP IT Futures framework that will 

support the ongoing development of our Electronic Patient Records.

Connect Our Care Settings – use digital, data and technology to connect our care settings

• Enable providers both within primary care e.g. GP, community pharmacy, optometry, dentistry and between primary and secondary care to 

digitally share patient records. This capability should support effective clinical decision making and enable smooth navigation of patients to the 

right part of the system.

• Sharing information in this way will reduce administrative burden e.g. for primary care teams, and empower secondary care providers to update 

medication changes on discharge from care automatically via the NHS Electronic Prescribing Service (ePS) and send a notification to the patient’s 

pharmacy to dispense medication in the community.

• Unlocking interoperability and shared record capabilities will support other digital technologies such as remote monitoring tools to empower 

patients, and their carers, to play a greater role in their care.

Transform Our Data Foundations – deliver the data foundations to provide the insights required to transform our systems and better meet 

the needs of our population

• Continue to spread and scale the existing Population Health Management infrastructure that exists in BOB across the entire system.

• Advance our data sharing agreements so we continue to benefit from the capabilities within the Thames Valley and Surrey Shared Care Record, 

and continue to work with clinical system providers to enable data sharing features within the BOB system. 

Digital and data  

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

Right Support Proactive care EnablersPrevention

P
age 58



31

Our Approach to Delivery

In this section we set out our plans 

to deliver our shared vision. We 

have proposed a delivery approach 

based on the principles of Quality 

Improvement that we know can 

drive change. Given the pressure 

and limited capacity in the system, 

we have set out three priorities that 

as a system we commit to 

delivering. 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 59



32

Our approach to delivering this strategy

We are committed to ensuring this strategy turns into action and makes a difference to people living in BOB. The ICB will oversee delivery of the 

strategy at a local level, whilst empowering our staff working in primary care and system partners to make the required changes. These principles 

underpin our approach to delivering this strategy.

To achieve our vision, we need to 

prioritise a small number of high 

impact actions. Acknowledging 

our system is under pressure and 

capacity is limited, the actions we 

focus on must have the biggest 

impact on the challenges we are 

trying to address. 

Our delivery approach is 

underpinned by the continuous 

improvement principles outlined 

in NHS IMPACT. This approach 

will be bespoke for the three 

priorities and enable teams to:

✓ Understand the problem and 

biggest opportunities for 

improvement 

✓ use data to drive decision-

making

✓ test small incremental 

changes for our priority 

actions

✓ share learnings and learn 

from experience

✓ Create a ‘bottom-up’ culture of 

improvement 

Primary Care is a complex 

landscape of mostly independent 

contractors which means we 

cannot implement a “one size fits 

all” model. We need to ensure 

the detailed design of the model 

of care takes place at a 

neighbourhood level, where 

those working on the frontline of 

Primary Care are making the 

decisions, with their 

communities, about changes in 

the way we work. 

Create Focus 1
Delivery Programme

Approach2 Local Design 3

We recognise the need for the 

ICB to lead delivery of the 

strategy and to support the 

changes in the way we work. The 

ICB will act as a “convenor”, 

bringing together Primary Care 

with system partners to have 

meaningful discussions on how 

we deliver our priority actions 

and better meet the needs of our 

population. Further support will 

be given in enabling areas such 

as workforce, to ensure 

neighbourhoods are supported to 

drive the changes. 

ICB Support4

To deliver this strategy and 

enable a shift in the model of 

care, all system partners will be 

required to work in new and 

innovative ways. For example, 

acute providers will need to 

identify members of their 

workforce who can work in the 

community alongside primary 

care colleagues. All partners will 

need to identify opportunities to 

work more flexibly and share 

resources, including estates in 

new ways. 

System partner 

Support5

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 60



33

Our priorities for delivery

We have identified three areas where we can make a real impact on improving people’s health and wellbeing and reducing pressure on staff. Where 

possible, we will focus on working with communities that experience the most inequalities. In line with BOB’s overall system strategy, we have 

focused on aligning the priorities with two of our system goals and introducing more joined-up ways of working between services – rather than 

discrete priorities with one area like dentistry or general practice. The priorities are described in more detail on later pages.

Non-complex 

same-day care

Integrated 

Neighbourhood Teams

Cardiovascular Disease           

(CVD) prevention

General Practice, Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry and Dentistry will work together, with 

111 and Urgent Care, to better manage those 

who require support that day, but whose need 

is not complex. 

Around 70% of population health need is low 

complexity, and this makes up approx. 50% of 

GP activity.

Impact:

• Improved patient experience as they get the 

urgent support they need. 

• Release capacity in General Practice to focus 

those with more complex needs. 

General Practice, Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry and Dentistry will work together with 

community, mental health, acute and VCSE 

services to provide proactive, personalised care 

to a defined population group with more 

complex needs, for example, frail older people. 

Around 70% of health and social care spending 

is on long term conditions.

Impact:

• People’s health conditions are better managed 

reducing their need for unplanned hospital care.

• System capacity better coordinated and directed 

at need leading to greater staff satisfaction. 

General Practice, Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry and Dentistry will work together with 

Local Authorities, VCSE and the wider health 

system to reduce the risk factors for 

Cardiovascular Disease (CVD) including 

smoking, obesity and high blood pressure.  

CVD is one of the most common causes of 

ongoing ill-health and deaths in BOB.

Impact:

- Reduce 797 heart attacks and 290 strokes (CVD 

events) in the next 4 years.

- Reduce demand on General Practice and 

Secondary Care and reduce the overall societal 

cost.

1 2 3

John Hopkins ACG System BOB Size of Prize 2023Long-term conditions and multi-morbidity | The King's 

Fund (kingsfund.org.uk)

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 61

https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/time-think-differently/trends-disease-and-disability-long-term-conditions-multi-morbidity
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/time-think-differently/trends-disease-and-disability-long-term-conditions-multi-morbidity


34

We will continue to focus on other improvements in addition

Our three priorities focus on those areas where we need a system-wide focus to tackle the biggest challenges. There are other areas where work has 

been and will continue to be undertaken to make improvements to realise our vision. These align with our priorities in the BOB Joint Forward Plan 

and the Integrated Care Strategy, and we have highlighted a number of areas below.

• Support the public to optimise 

use of the NHS app so that they 

can see their medical records, 

order repeat prescriptions, 

manage routine appointments 

and see messages from their 

practice. 

• Improve the ways in which 

patients contact and interact 

with their GP and navigate 

care, including the 111 service - 

support provided to GPs through 

national and local improvement 

programmes.

• Continue to strengthen the 

primary care workforce 

including recruitment, retention, 

supporting staff practice to the 

top of their license.

• Improve the interface between 

primary and secondary care – 

to streamline processes and 

touchpoints for patients.

• Roll out of the Pharmacy First 

initiative in 2024 so that 

patients can access 

prescription-only medicine 

without needing to visit a GP 

e.g. for UTI treatment. 

• Upskilling of community 

pharmacists in line with upcoming 

new policy so that more 

pharmacists are able to 

provide assessments of 

patients and make prescribing 

decisions without patients having 

seen their GP first. 

• Continue to expand  vaccination 

service e.g. flu and covid

• Expand GP Connect to enable 

GP practices and authorised 

clinical staff (e.g. pharmacy 

professionals) to share and 

view electronic health records 

information and 

appointments information.

• Implementation of an 

electronic referral platform 

which will allow community 

optometrists to send routine 

referrals directly to the patients’ 

chosen hospital or single point 

of access.

• National intent to extend and 

roll out ‘in school’ eye testing 

in all schools from April 2024, 

with certain schools given 

priority for the rollout.

• National minor eye condition 

service to be expanded in 

early 2024 which aims to 

improve equity and accessibility 

for patients with most eye 

conditions seen at eye units and 

by GPs.

• Expanding hospital at home 

approach and redesigning 

hospital discharge model - 

integrating with local councils so 

more services and care can be 

moved into the community.

• Enabling patients to have 

direct access to community 

services such as 

musculosketal, audiology, 

weight management and 

community podiatry without 

needing to go to the GP first.

• Improve community-based 

support for those suffering 

with Mental Health e.g. The 

Thames Valley Link Programme 

(TVLP) has been established to 

provide extra support to children 

and young people who are often 

described as having ‘complex 

needs’ .

• Further expansion of the 

Flexible Commissioning scheme 

which provides care for 

patients from underserved 

communities.

• Continuing to undertake oral 

health assessments and 

increase dental hygiene in 

children and young people -  

targeting prevention 

interventions.

• Exploring implementation of 

mobile dental units.

• Building dental clinical 

workforce resilience

• Proactive management 

approach to dentistry though 

better oversight of access, 

quality and performance 

challenges.

General Practice Community Pharmacy Optometry Dentistry Community

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 62



35

ICB and Place support for local delivery

Clinical and operational teams, working with their communities, will be the ones who drive new ways of working. The ICB and Place teams will 

provide dedicated support to focused Local Action Teams working on our three priorities within an overall Primary Care Delivery Programme.

Local Action Teams

• Clinical and operational teams working with 

communities 

• Footprint determined locally as appropriate – 

could be PCN, Local Authority, other 

• Members determined and may differ for each 

priority but include all pillars of primary care 

and wider system partners

• Leadership of teams must be clearly agreed 

for each priority

Place-level

• Place-based Partnerships are accountable for 

delivery of the priorities 

• Place Delivery Teams will be established to be 

responsible for delivery and first line of 

support for Local Action Teams

ICB-level

• The BOB ICB Primary and Community 

Care Strategic Transformation 

Coordination Group is accountable for 

delivery of the priorities 

• The Primary Care Team is 

responsible for delivery of the 

priorities, working closely with ICB 

leads for Workforce, Digital & Data, 

Estates and Resourcing.

The delivery structure will need to 

align to the overall BOB ICB 

Operating Model that is being 

developed.  

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 63



36

A phased approach working with cohorts across the three priorities 

The Primary Care Delivery Programme will bring together multidisciplinary teams from across Neighbourhood, Place and ICB levels to deliver our 

three high impact actions, across a three year period. Our Placed-Based-Partnerships will be key to supporting delivery of this approach and driving 

improvement. Two of our priority workstreams are aligned with our wider system goals on CVD Prevention and Integrated Neighbourhood teams.

March – August 2024

Three sites in each 

Place

March – August 2025

Up to nine sites in each 

Place

C
o

h
o

rt
 1

September 2024 – 

February 2025

Up to six sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 2

C
o

h
o

rt
 3

September 2024 – 

February 2025

Three sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 1 March - August 2025

Up to six sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 2

September 2025 – 

February 2026

Up to nine sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 3

Co-design blueprint of 

INTs in each Place

Mobilisation

‘Site’ = Neighbourhood level team e.g. Primary Care 

Network (PCN), or multiple PCNs working together 

or any appropriate scale at a 

local level.

Priority 

workstreams

March - August 2025

Three sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 1

September 2025 – 

February 2026

Up to six sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 2 March – August 2026

Up to nine sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 3

1

2024 2025 2026

Non-complex 

same-day care

2

Integrated 

Neighbourhood 

Teams

3

CVD 

Prevention

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 64



37

Action plan to establish the Primary Care Delivery Programme

We want to work with all partners in primary care in a new way, utilising the continuous Quality Improvement approaches that we know can drive 

change and make an impact. 

• Establish Place Delivery Teams to 

lead this work from March 2024.

• Place Delivery Teams membership to 

be determined, but for example: GP 

Chairs, other clinical leadership as 

determined from primary care pillars, 

Place Directors and ICB primary care 

team 

1

• Establish the Governance structure, 

reporting up to the Primary & 

Community Transformation Board. 

• Performance and outcomes for each 

of the priorities to be monitored 

through the Primary Care Strategy 

Scorecard.

2

• Determine local footprints for this work 

in each Place – these will be the 

‘Local Action Teams’ taking part in 

the Delivery Programme.

• Footprints will need to be determined 

for each of the 3 priorities: 1) same 

day- access, 2) Integrated 

Neighbourhood teams and 3) 

CVD Prevention 3

• Place Delivery team and Placed-based 

Partnership to hold launch event of the 

Primary Care Delivery Programme - 

to explain programme objectives, 

timeline and rollout. 

• All neighbourhoods will be required 

to participate in this programme of 

work, but it will be tailored to 

their circumstances. 4

• Undertake baseline assessment to 

understand starting point and specific 

needs of the Local Action Teams – like 

current state of triage and navigation 

functions across Primary Care and 

whether they have already adopted a 

multidisciplinary way of working with 

system partners.

5

• Support access and use of 

population health management 

(PHM) data to understand which 

population cohorts experience the 

poorest outcomes and are from the 

most deprived areas – to inform 

selection of neighbourhoods for each 

cohort. 

6

• Use the baseline assessment to 

identify three Local Action Teams in 

each Place to take part in the first 

cohort of the Delivery Programme, 

(same-day access) – the teams 

should be a mix of those already 

working in new ways and those who 

are yet to begin. 

• Use the assessment and PHM data to 

identify 3 teams in each Place to take 

part in the second cohort (INTs). 

Majority of the teams 

should be from deprived areas. 7

• Place Delivery Team to hold 

introductory mobilisation calls with 

the Local Action Teams in each 

cohort, to agree team members and 

ensure their time has been allocated 

to participating in the programme . 

8

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 65



38

Priority 1
Non-complex same-day care

P
age 66



39

Our first priority is to expand at-scale triage and 

navigation to appropriately direct same-day non-complex need

This is the first priority as it will directly address the biggest concern of our population – access to care – and can also rapidly reduce pressure on 

staff by reducing people needing multiple appointments before they get to the right place. 

• Improve patient experience by making it easier to 

navigate to the support they need. 

• Release capacity for GPs to see people who have 

medium to high complex needs

• Enhanced staff satisfaction and retention due to at-

scale supervision models that make it easier to provide 

appropriate oversight and support to ARRS roles, and 

possibility to rotate in and out of hub roles providing 

more variety 

• Make better use of current estate through hub working 

and an increase in virtual consultations. 

Approximately half of General Practice activity is same-day care 

and a large proportion of this is for non-complex needs, like 

Urinary Tract Infections. In these cases, speed of access is 

generally more important than continuity of care. 

Non-complex needs can often be directed to other primary care 

services such as community pharmacy or virtual/physical access 

hubs (where practices collaborate to triage and treat same-day 

need).

This way of working is emerging in parts of BOB and is in line with 

national direction of travel around at-scale working. Working at-

scale (e.g. through same-day access hubs) can help to improve 

access as it involves a multidisciplinary way of working, utilising a 

varied workforce to deliver a wide range of services e.g. a hub 

could have pharmacists, physician associates, dentists and 

specialist nurses. This can help manage demand more effectively 

in a local area.

What impact will this way of working have? 

1

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 67



40

An example of a future same-day access pathway

Patient is triaged based on need - by the 

Same Day Access Hub Care Coordinator 

(who has support from a clinician when 

needed). Patient segmentation RAG rating 

pops up on screen to assist triage. 

Information will be captured by a consistent 

digital tool whether on the phone or online. 

If a same day appt is required this will be 

scheduled in to the Same Day Access Hub.

Patient feeling

 unwell

Self Care / 

Management

If appropriate the patient 

tries to resolve through 

publicly available, 

regulated information, 

advice and guidance e.g. 

from NHS Website/App, 

or goes to the pharmacy

Same Day Access 

Hub Front Door

Online

Phone

Walk-in

Patient requests support

The patient decides they need further support and 

requests through their preferred route (most often 

likely to be their local GP surgery):

Patient is seeking ‘same 

day’ which they can 

request via cloud 

telephony, online 

consultation, or 

speaking with staff 

member. 

This redirects them or 

their online form directly 

to the hub.

Same day appointment 

not needed

If a same day appointment is not needed, the hub care coordinator will either:

a) Book the patient in for a routine appointment in the coming days at their home practice by 

accessing the local GP EPR system, or 

b) Direct them elsewhere e.g. 111, Community Pharmacy, dentist, community service, mental 

health service etc.

c) If the care coordinator feels they need to speak directly to their home practice reception, they 

can divert them back through cloud telephony

Initial Contact

A patient is seen in either:

✓ A same-day face to face or virtual appt 

with a GP

✓ A same-day face to face or virtual appt 

with another member of extended 

general practice/ primary care network 

team

✓ Redirected to Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry, Dentistry or UTC

✓ Redirected to community services such 

as audiology or mental health services

✓ Redirected to VCSE

Self management Triage & navigation Initial Contact

111

Community 

Pharmacy

Triage & Navigation

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

1

P
age 68



41

Triage and navigation will be designed locally but with common 

features

The specifics of the model of care must be determined at local level to reflect the differing needs of populations, existing workforce and estate, and  

configurations of partner providers. However, patients and staff will benefit from consistent features. 

Patients continue to request same-day 

care in a range of ways that suit them 

– on their GP website/app, NHS app, 

by phoning their GP, walking into their 

community pharmacy, or calling 111.

Data is collected to support triage 

through an online form – filled in by the 

patient or receptionist/care coordinator 

– that is consistent across the 

neighbourhoods. Online tools are used 

to support clinical decision-making. 

Triage is undertaken only once –

either by the practice, 111 or, ideally 

and over time, by the same day 

access hub. 

Over time, triage can be backed by 

prior patient need and risk 

stratification to support clinical 

decision-making. 

01 02 03 04

Where triage determines that the 

patient should be seen by their home 

practice, either due to complexity or 

because routine appointment is more 

appropriate, they are ideally booked 

directly or transferred back to the 

practice (i.e. they do not need to make 

a new request). 

Where triage determines the patient 

should be seen outside of General 

Practice – e.g. Urgent Care/Treatment 

Centre, community pharmacy, dentist or 

optometrist, agreed clinical pathways 

will enable this. Patients will be booked 

in to the right service e.g. into urgent 

dental slots, transferred by phone, or 

clearly directed, ideally with 

accompanying clinical communication. 

The same day access hub is 

resourced by multi-skilled staff from 

practices and the wider system, who 

will contribute staff by agreement, 

likely based on list size. The hub 

should offer face to face as well as 

virtual appointments – this could be in 

existing estate by rotating around 

practices, or in an existing dedicated 

space if available. 

The hub will use Standard Operating 

Procedures agreed with all practices 

and partners, and will have 

documented approach to Clinical 

Governance.

05 06 07 08

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

1

P
age 69



42

Primary care is at different stages of adopting this way of working, and the detailed design of same-day access pathways must build from where 

neighbourhoods are starting from. Place Teams will support a Quality Improvement approach to delivery. 

Action Plan for same-day non-complex care

The ICB and Place Teams will:

✓ Bring teams together for focused sessions to progress activities 

on the right – enabling them to share learning, do things once 

where consistency makes sense, and support each other to 

overcome blockers 

✓ Provide resources based on national, global and local good 

practice on same day access 

✓ Work to enable patient records to be shared across all of 

Primary Care and broader system and improve ability to 

communicate and refer between all primary care professionals 

(digitally).

✓ Make available the ICB Expert teams responsible for key 

enabling areas like workforce, digital, data and estates to 

provide updates, help unblock issues, escalate where needed 

and provide extra support, as required.

✓ Support the setting of clear outcome metrics and the tracking 

and collation of these to demonstrate impact 

✓ Ensure involvement of system partners in co-designing 

pathways, and promote visibility of new ways of working across 

their Place 

✓ Roll out Population Health Management tools to help segment 

our population into groups based on their needs and identify 

those most likely suitable for same-day non-complex care. 

Local Action Teams will be supported to: 

Existing pathways 

✓ Map current access pathways that exist 

e.g. across GP,  Pharmacy, Mental Health 

etc. 

✓ Identify where the biggest improvements 

can be made and set measurable 

outcomes.

✓ Agree and test a small number of 

changes to the pathways on a small scale, 

discuss how all system partners could 

support these changes.

✓ Capture and analyse impact of the change, 

collecting data and tracking the impact 

against the outcome measure. 

✓ If the changes demonstrate sustainable 

improvement, agree plans for 

implementation of changes at a wider-

scale.

New pathways Supporting discussions:

✓ For new pathways e.g. same-

day access hub, Minor Eye 

Conditions etc, map future 

state, set outcome metrics 

and conduct small-scale test 

of change.

✓ Capture and analyse impact of 

the change, spread scale if 

improvement is demonstrated. 

✓ Identify enablers required to support best 

use of pathways – Standard Operating 

Protocols, digital interoperability of patient 

records and appointment booking systems

✓ Estimate impact of increased referrals to 

Community Pharmacy and build into 

plans for Pharmacy First – look to increase 

referrals from A&E and UCC using EMIS. 

✓ Review demand and capacity modelling, 

agreeing capacity required in same day 

access hub and workforce contributions 

from each practice.

✓ Identify enablers required to support at-

scale working – rotational or dedicated use 

of existing estate, interoperability of 

systems (cloud telephony, EPRs, triage 

tools etc).

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

1

P
age 70



43

Priority 2
Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

P
age 71



44

Our second priority is to create Integrated Neighbourhood Teams to 

coordinate care and support for at least one population cohort

As a system, we’re committed to making a reality of integrated neighbourhood working, and this priority means we will begin that work by 

establishing Integrated Neighbourhood Teams in all areas beginning with a focus on one defined population cohort.   

• Improve patient experience by providing continuity of care 

from a named professional, who can coordinate a holistic 

approach to meeting needs, combining expertise from 

different teams. 

• Improve outcomes especially in the management of long-

term conditions and reduce inequalities in outcomes.

• Reduce demand for GP appointments as continuity is 

provided by a multi-skilled team working together to manage 

needs, releasing capacity for GPs to focus on the most 

complex needs and prevention.  

• Reduce Emergency Department attendance and 

emergency admissions as issues (medical and social) are 

addressed before they escalate.

• Improve staff wellbeing through development of a 

collaborative culture that puts patients needs first and 

supports flexible working in different teams. 

What impact will this way of working have? 

We want to put primary care at the core of this model, with 

Integrated Neighbourhood Teams as the delivery mechanism to 

implement this way of working. All neighbourhoods will work to 

design and develop an INT to bring professionals from across 

the system to work together in the community (virtually and 

physically) to provide holistic support to at least one 

population cohort e.g. frail older people, children with health 

conditions. 

There are already some Integrated Neighborhood Teams 

operating in BOB and lots of plans underway. Developing 

relationships and building trust amongst system partners will be 

key to the success of this approach. 

2

An integrated community-based model can make the biggest 

difference for those who have (or are at risk of having) complex 

medical or social issues. Often this is associated with multiple 

long term conditions, and inequalities in access, experience and 

outcomes. 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 72



45

Defining an Integrated Neighbourhood Team for BOB 

Who What

INTs are the delivery vehicle for a community based model. They will:

• Be a multidisciplinary team of generalist and specialist skilled health 

and social care professionals. 

• Work with other partners in the neighbourhood – e.g. police, mental 

health services and local housing associations.

• Actively involve and engage the local community in planning and 

decision-making to ensure services align with actual population needs.

• Have a designated GP clinical lead with protected time. 

• Have secondary care consultants aligned to support and deliver 

services to the population cohort. 

• Be established from existing resources and infrastructure. 

• Integrate into service and community development in neighbourhoods, 

with all pillars of Primary Care part of the offer. 

Teams will develop their own standard working practices that may include: 

• A daily call ‘huddle’ - where patient notes are reviewed, next steps for 

priority patients discussed and plans for home-visits agreed.

• A weekly INT meeting is scheduled to discuss high risk patients in 

more detail and create personalised care plans

• Any community-based care that is required for patients should be 

allocated to the most appropriate team e.g. district nursing.

• The secondary care consultant will provide specialist advice to the 

team and help resolve complex cases.

• Community teams will have regular contact with the clinical lead/ GP in 

the INT to ensure any complex issues are resolved. 

• Across some teams, senior GPs may serve as the ‘consultant in 

General Practice’, providing holistic expert care to a population cohort. 

• Determine a local footprint for the INTs in each Place, which may be based on PCN or multiple PCNs.  

• Teams do not have to be co-located in the same premises to work successfully but opportunities to engage in person, alongside virtual meetings are 

preferable.. 

Where

We recognise that INTs are not a new concept, but rather an evolution and extension of Multi-disciplinary Teams that have already been operating. 

Each INT will look different, based on the population it is focused on and the partners involved. As a system, we have developed core principles to 

guide how we build INTs that will make it easier for us to explain INTs to our population and staff, and learn from each other as we develop new ways 

of working.

PHM tools to identify, 

understand and define a cohort 

to focus on

High degree of trust and a 

culture of collaboration between 

health and care teams and 

professionals 

Virtual and physical space to 

come together 

Ability to share patient records 

among system partners 

Supported by:

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

2

P
age 73



46

Action Plan for Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

The ICB and Place Teams will:

Primary care is at different stages of adopting this approach to delivering care, and the detailed design of INTs must build from the Local Action Teams that 

are developing this team, alongside their system partners. Place Teams will support a Quality Improvement approach to delivery. 

✓ Support the determination of a local footprint for INTs, based on PCN or 

neighbourhood. 

✓ Identify the Local Action Teams to take part in each cohort of the Delivery 

Programme, ensuring an early focus on deprived areas. 

✓ Bring teams together for focused sessions – enabling them to share learning, do 

things once where consistency makes sense, and support each other to overcome 

blockers 

✓ Make available ICB teams responsible for key enabling areas like workforce, digital, 

data and estates to provide updates, help unblock issues, escalate where needed 

✓ Support the setting of clear outcome metrics and the tracking and collation of these 

to demonstrate impact 

✓ Ensure involvement of system partners in the Integrated Neighbourhood Team 

approach e.g. ensuring specialist secondary care consultants job plans are aligned with 

this way of working, and promoting visibility of new ways of working across their Place. 

✓ Roll out Population Health Management tools and support use of these to identify 

initial population cohort that each INT decides to focus on 

✓ Continue to expand shared care record to enable patient records to be shared 

across all of Primary Care and broader system

✓ Review population health data to agree a population cohort to focus on based on the 

principles of tackling inequalities and reducing system pressure.

✓ Lead conversations with system partners (including primary, secondary care, community 

services, VCSE, social care and others) to agree roles in the INT, securing the required capacity 

and commitment. 

✓ Work with providers to ensure Pharmacy, Optometry, Dentistry and others are appropriately 

involved and aligned to the team, maximising the capacity of the whole system to meet the 

needs of the population cohort. 

✓ Define the core capabilities of the INT and interactions between all providers. 

✓ Agree ways of working with INT core members e.g. daily huddles, weekly MDT meetings to 

review patients and care plans.

✓ Identify appropriate virtual and physical space

✓ Establish Standard Operating Procedures for referrals into and out of INT, clinical governance etc.

✓ Test new way of working with small segment of the population cohort - conduct daily and 

weekly calls, review patients and actions required.

✓ Track and evaluate benefits, share learnings and tweak processes (where required).

✓ Scale approach to whole population cohort once improvements are demonstrated.

Local Action Teams will be supported to: 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

2

P
age 74



47

Priority 3
CVD Prevention

P
age 75



48

Our third priority is to align primary care to support a 

system-wide focus on preventing Cardiovascular Disease

Cardiovascular disease (CVD) is a major cause of death in BOB and is a key driver of the life expectancy gap between people living in our most and 

least deprived areas. To reduce the number of heart attacks and strokes, we need a system-wide focus on intervening to reduce the major risk 

factors, and tackle inequalities. 

• Reduce the number of people developing CVD, and 

prevent people from having a heart attack or stroke 

(CVD events).

• Reduce Emergency Department attendances and 

emergency admissions for heart attacks and strokes. 

• Reduce the gap in life expectancy between the most 

and least deprived communities.   

• Support people with high-risk CVD conditions such 

as atrial fibrillation, high blood pressure and raised 

cholesterol to better manage their health with 

convenient, community-based support.  

• Make it easier for staff in all parts of the system to 

direct people to information, resources, support and 

services that can help them to adopt healthy 

lifestyles. 

All four pillars of primary care are already leading the fight against 

CVD, by targeting the high risk conditions (high blood pressure, Atrial 

Fibrillation (AF), high cholesterol and heart failure). This includes 

encouraging healthy lifestyles, identification of those at risk, and 

effective clinical management of those with high risk conditions. 

We want to build on that work and take the opportunity to target those 

efforts strategically where they will have most impact – by using data 

about our population’s health to focus on those communities at 

highest risk, including deprived areas, some ethnic minority groups, 

and those with severe mental illness, learning disabilities or 

neurodiversity. 

With CVD prevention as a system priority across BOB, primary care’s 

efforts will be enhanced by working in an integrated way with system 

partners – like public health teams and local councils. This should 

reduce duplication, maximise value for our population and enable us 

to deliver more proactive and personalised care.

What impact will this way of working have? 

3

BOB Joint Forward Plan (2023)

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 76



49

Example future integrated local approach to CVD prevention

This slide shows an example of how all parts of the system come together at a local level to take a data-driven approach to CVD prevention, 

supported by system-wide shared training. 

Produce and share population risks 

for CVD at system, Place, LA and 

PCN level. Do community 

engagement for a deeper 

understanding.

Based on agreed outcome metrics, 

evaluate success or otherwise of 

intervention, share findings, and build into 

future planning

From primary to secondary care, 

integrated clinical pathways for 

proactive management 

hypertension, AF, high cholesterol

Information provided for self-management 

of e.g. simple hypertension, in partnership 

with community pharmacy, automated 

blood pressure stratification.

Health checks undertaken by LA, GP, 

pharmacy, dentistry, optometry, 

vaccine centres, community events

Agree local plans with all partners e.g. 

signposting  to smoking services. 

Others include obesity, physical 

inactivity, healthy diet and alcohol use.

Identification 

of those with 

high-risk CVD 

conditions

Population 

Health Needs 

Analysis

Monitor 

effectiveness 

of interventions 

Targeted healthy 

lifestyles support

Support for 

self-management

Proactive, 

personalised

support for those 

with high-risk 

CVD conditions

General 
Practice and 

CVD 
champions

Vaccine 
centres

Schools

Community 
Pharmacy

Local 
Authorities (LA)

ICB and Place 
teams

Integrated 
Clinical 

Networks

Dentistry, 
optometry

Voluntary and 
Community 

Groups

Social care

Acute 
services

Mental health 
services

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

3

P
age 77



50

The ICB and Place Teams will:

Whilst all aspects of primary care already undertake CVD prevention activity, ICB and Place Teams will support this focus, working with cohorts of 

Local Action Teams through a Delivery Programme approach.

Action plan for Cardiovascular Disease prevention

✓ Support access to PHM data where not yet available, support all to use the data 

to draw out actionable insights.

✓ Put in place ‘one ICS’ education and training on CVD prevention so 

multidisciplinary teams attend together to drive collaboration.

✓ Provide educational resources based on national, global and local good 

practice on CVD prevention, working with Integrated Clinical Networks 

✓ Bring teams together for focused sessions to progress activities on the right –

enabling them to share learning, do things once where consistency makes 

sense, and support each other to overcome blockers.

✓ Support the setting of clear outcome metrics and the tracking and collation of 

these to demonstrate impact.

✓ Ensure involvement of system partners in co-designing pathways, and 

promote visibility of new ways of working across their Place.

✓ Map CVD prevention activity already planned or being implemented across the 

site by all partners, including Public Health.

✓ Explore and debate the population health information shared and use this to 

prioritise and shape three local actions, that all partners will work on with the 

community to reduce risk factors for CVD 

✓ Use data to identify where the biggest improvements can be made and set  

measurable outcomes.

✓ Actions might include for example, targeted smoking cessation interventions, 

increase in NHS health checks, expansion of hypertension case finding by 

community pharmacies.

✓ Agree and test interventions on a small-scale, collecting data and tracking the 

impact against the outcome measure. 

✓ If the changes demonstrate sustainable improvement, agree plans for 

implementation of changes at a wider-scale.

✓ Identify key enablers such as workforce and estates requirements, including 

how to strengthen CVD champion roles and make use of opportunities at 

community events.

Local Action Teams will be supported to: 

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

3

P
age 78



51

Oversight of Progress

In this section we set out our plans to 

build a strong delivery structure based 

on Quality Improvement principles to 

ensure accountability is clear and we 

make progress on delivering our vision. 

We also include a scorecard that we 

will use to track measurable progress 

for our population and our staff.  

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 79



52

We will ensure accountability for delivery is clear, based on 

quality improvement principles

We will build a strong delivery infrastructure that empowers frontline teams to design and deliver changes to their models of care, and 

enables the ICB to mobilise resources and unblock issues 

Level Accountable Responsible

ICB Primary and Community Care Transformation Board

• Set overall plan as per this strategy

• Monitor delivery against outcome metrics 

• Allocate resource appropriately

• Troubleshoot when issues are escalated 

Digital and Data Oversight Group

• Set overall primary care digital and data plan as per digital and data strategy

• Monitors progress being made against the digital and data plan that will interlink 

this strategic

Primary care team

• Delivery of overall plan:

- With Place-based Delivery Teams for Model of Care 

- With ICB leads for Enablers 

• Track progress and report to P&C Transformation Board 

• Allocate team members to each Place-based Delivery Team

Place Place-based-Partnerships

• Monitor delivery in their Place

• Allocate resources 

• Troubleshoot when issues are escalated

• Ensure learning is widely shared

Place Delivery Teams (including alliance / federation staff as appropriate, ICB primary care 

team members, others to be determined) 

• Agree sequencing of Local Action Teams to join programme

• First line of support for Local Action Teams

• Track progress and escalate issues to ICB level for resolution  

Neighbourhood Local Providers

• Corporate and clinical accountability rests with established providers / groups of 

providers working together e.g. in alliance or federation structures

• Appropriate memoranda of understanding or other constructs put in place to 

enable contribution to Local Action Teams

Local Action Teams (Clinical and operational teams working with their communities)

• Design new local models of care to deliver the priorities in the strategy, supported by Place 

Delivery Team

• Engage with Primary Care Delivery Programme at the appropriate time, take advantage of 

the resources and peer learning available 

• Escalate issues to Place Delivery Team

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 80



53

We will develop a scorecard to track progress 

Outcomes Success metric* Frequency of measure

Improve patient 

experience

1. GP Patient Survey for overall satisfaction 

2. % of positive responses on Friends and Family test 

Annual

Monthly

Improve outcomes for 

Long Term Conditions

1. QOF indicators – for diabetes, respiratory, cardiac (hypertension)

2. Hypertension 18+ managed to target 

3. 18+ Q risk score of 20+  and need lipid therapy

4.  Proportion of people with long term conditions with care and support plans

5. Reduction in emergency admissions for chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions

Monthly data from CSU

Improve staff wellbeing 1. Sickness absence rates

2. Leaver rates among newly qualified staff

3. Retirement rates 

4. NHS Staff survey (when introduced for primary care)

Monthly

Annual 

More sustainable 

system

1. Average number of EMIS entry types – clinical vs administrative

2. Community Pharmacy Consultation Scheme uptake and outcomes 

Monthly

Whilst the whole system embarks on this transformation journey, we need a way to regularly monitor progress against our outcomes. We have 

developed this scorecard to translate the strategy into operational terms and focus on a set of key measurements. The scorecard will provide a quick, 

but comprehensive snapshot of the Primary Care system.

*Please note that this data is an example only and we will do more work to define the metrics as an ICB and identify where we have data that we could measure each of these.

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 81



54

Glossary of terms 

Term Definition

A&E Accident and Emergency

AF Atrial Fibrillation

ARRS Additional Roles Reimbursement Scheme

BOB Buckinghamshire Oxfordshire and Berkshire West 

CAS Clinical Assessment Services

CVD Cardiovascular disease 

CPCS Community Pharmacy Consultation Service Scheme 

EMIS Education Management Information Systems

EPR Electronic Patient Records

EPS Electronic Prescription Service 

ED Emergency Department

F2F Face-to-face

FTE Full-time Equivalent 

GP General Practitioner

ICB Integrated Care Board

ICP Integrated Care Partnership

ICS Integrated Care System 

INT Integrated Neighbourhood Team

Term Definition

JFP Joint Forward Plan

KPI Key Performance Indicator

LA Local Authority

LDC Local Dental Committee 

LPC Local Pharmacy Committee

LMC Local Medical Committee

LTC Long Term Condition

MECS Minor Eye Condition Service 

MDT Multidisciplinary team

PBP Place Based Partnerships

PROMS Patient Reported Outcome Measures

POD Pharmacy Optometry Dentistry 

PHM Population Health Management 

PCN Primary Care Network

QI Quality Improvement 

QOF Quality and Outcomes Framework

UCC Urgent Care Centre

UDA Unit of Dental Actvity

UTC Urgent Treatment Centre 

VCSE Voluntary, community or social enterprise

Introduction Our Primary Care Our Shared Vision Approach to Delivery Oversight & Progress

P
age 82



55

Thank you for reading this draft strategy.

We are grateful to all those in the BOB 

Integrated Care System who have helped to 

shape this draft strategy.

We need your views and feedback to help 

agree our final strategy, so please do share 

your thoughts via 

engagement.bobics@nhs.net

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Transforming Primary Care – 

Executive Summary

General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry 

P
age 85

A
ppendix 



2

Why we need a primary care strategy 

156 GP 
practices

51 primary care 

networks 

Population of nearly 

2 million 

203 dental 

practices 

Primary Care includes General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry services. These services provide the first point of contact, 

have an ongoing connection with local communities, and lead on improving the ‘whole person’ health of our population.

BOB ICS is putting primary care at the heart of our transformation, to 

deliver our vision set out in the Integrated Care Strategy:

Everyone who lives in BOB should have the best possible start 

in life, live happier, healthier lives for longer and be able to 

access the right support when they need it.

We currently deliver some outstanding primary care, but services are 

under considerable pressure. We 

have inequalities in outcomes for our patients, workforce gaps and 

high workload. 

A national direction has been set to integrate Primary Care provision. 

We have developed this strategy to address the challenges we are 

facing in Primary Care and improve integration between all of our 

pillars in Primary Care and how they work together to deliver the 

new model of care. This strategy will also cover how Primary Care will 

work with system partners such as community services, to deliver our 

future vision. Therefore, this strategy is aimed at multiple different 

audiences – people who use Primary Care services, our staff who 

work in Primary Care as well as wider system partners,  who will 

contribute to improving integration and collaboration to move to a 

more sustainable Primary Care system.

Approx

253 pharmacies

Primary Care data as of December 2023

P
age 86



3

Approach to developing 

this draft strategy 

Focus Groups and Surveys 

We carried out focus groups with 

key stakeholders - General 

Practice, Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry, and Dentistry and 

surveyed all pillars of Primary Care 

for their views.

System-wide workshop

Bringing together over 130 

stakeholders from across the 

system to discuss the future vision 

and opportunities for Primary Care. 

Data Analysis 

We have analysed available data 

to understand how people in BOB 

are using services today as well 

as what our workforce looks like. 

First draft of the 

Primary Care Strategy  

This document summarises the key 

challenges facing Primary Care and 

how we plan to address these 

through a change in our model of 

care. We will continue engaging with 

system partners’ and the public to 

hear their views. 

Research on good practice 

We researched global, national and local examples of 

good practice delivery of Primary Care services within 

other systems and within BOB. 

Ongoing engagement

Feeding in all our research and 

engagement so far, we started to 

draft the strategy and continued to 

meet with key stakeholder groups 

to get their input and feedback.

This strategy builds from 

national guidance and 

our own local plans. We 

have carried out 

extensive engagement 

and analysis to inform 

the development of this 

draft primary care 

strategy, which we now 

want to refine through 

further engagement with 

system partners and 

those who live and work 

in BOB.  

Current State Report 

Compiles documents, good 

practice, data analysis and views 

from engagement order to 

describe BOB’s Primary Care 

Landscape.

January 

2024

2022

Spring 

2023

Summer 2023

Autumn 

2023

Winter 2023

National guidance such as The 

Fuller Stocktake 

BOB Integrated Care Strategy and 

Joint Forward Plan 

P
age 87



4

Our primary care system has many strengths

There is much outstanding practice across primary care in BOB, and unique capabilities across its Places. Below are five highlights where the system 

has particular strengths that can be built upon.  

01
General Practice access 

and quality metrics in 

line with or above the 

national average 

The proportion of GP 

appointments seen within 

14 days is higher than the 

national and regional 

average. Most GP 

practices have either good 

or outstanding CQC 

ratings. Quality and 

Outcomes Framework 

scores are just above 

average. 

02
High uptake of the 

Community Pharmacy 

Consultation Service 

BOB has the third highest 

number of referrals (per 

population) to the 

Community Pharmacy 

Consultation Service 

across the Southeast 

region. 122 of the 156 GP 

practices are ‘live’ and 

referring their patients to 

community pharmacists, 

with a further 27 preparing 

to start using this service 

(as of December 2023). 

03
Strong focus on 

inequalities, prevention, 

and wider determinants

of health 

All three Place-based 

Partnerships have focused 

on this. For example, 

‘Opportunity Bucks’ targets 

the 10 most deprived areas 

in Buckinghamshire. 

Oxfordshire work focuses 

on specific communities 

such as people who are 

homeless. In Berkshire 

West community outreach 

is focused on reducing 

premature mortality.

04
Population Health 

Management 

Infrastructure

In parts of BOB, the 

Connected Care model has 

been developed with the 

addition of Population 

Health Management tools 

and is enabling people to 

be directed to the most 

appropriate health and care 

service, based on their 

needs. This supports better 

triage and navigation, 

identification of people who 

would benefit from 

intensive case 

management, and ability to 

design prevention 

interventions.

05
Flexible dentistry 

commissioning for our 

most vulnerable 

populations and 

extended commissioning 

for Minor Eye Conditions

BOB has started a pilot for 

flexible commissioning, 

where 10% of the contract 

can vary depending on 

local needs. This has 

enabled practitioners to 

service patients from under 

served communities who 

require dental care. 

Additionally, there has 

been great uptake of the 

referrals to the Minor Eye 

Conditions service and 

patient feedback has been 

positive.

06
Strength of existing at-

scale delivery structures 

Each Place has a Placed-

Based-Partnership 

(including local 

authorities, VCSE and 

others) which can drive 

and deliver transformation 

and integration at a local 

level. There are evolving 

Federations of General 

Practices established in 

each Place – FedBucks, 

PML in parts of 

Oxfordshire and the 

Primary Care Alliance in 

parts of Berkshire West 

that can lead change and 

deliver services for a large 

part of the population. 

1: NHS Digital (2023); 2: Primary Care Access and Recovery Plan (2023); 3: Brookside Case study – Segmentation in Primary Care (2023)

P
age 88



5

There are challenges within primary care and within the wider 

system that require new ways of working

19%

19% said there were no 

dental appointments 

available or said that the 

dentist was not taking on 

any new patients.2

14 community pharmacies 

closed in 2023 and 16 out of 20 

100hr pharmacies reduced their 

opening hours (mainly the 9pm-

12am slot).6

Demand for primary care outstrips current capacity and inefficiencies are created (for patients and staff) where the parts of the system do not work 

well together. The challenges require a system response, they cannot be solved by primary care alone.

Many primary care staff feel 

they are under extreme 

pressure

Capacity is difficult to grow 

due to funding, recruitment, 

retention and estates 

challenges

This is driven by a mismatch 

between demand and 

capacity across the system

People report a worsening 

experience of accessing 

primary care

67%

In the Community 

Pharmacy workforce 

survey, 67% of 

respondents said it is 

very difficult to fill vacant 

roles for pharmacists.7

BOB LMC data shows that GPs 

are responsible for more 

patients, and are spending a 

large proportion of time on 

administrative tasks relating to 

how patients move between 

parts of the system. 3

Since 2021, there has 

been a 19% decrease in 

positive responses with 

regards to the overall 

experience of booking an 

appointment.1

BOB’s growing population and 

changing demographic profile is 

increasing demand for primary 

care services - more than one in 

four of the adult population live 

with more than two long term 

conditions.5

01 02 03 04

Multiple respondents to the BOB 

dental survey said they are 

under extreme pressure due to 

demand much greater than 

capacity, lack of funding and 

recruitment and retention 

challenges.

1: National GP survey results, 2023; 2: BOB GP Patient Survey Dental Statistics 2023; 3: BBOB LMC The Health of General Practice in BOB; 4: BOB Primary Care Assurance Report 2023/24 Quarter 2 (2023);

5: BOB Joint Forward Plan (2023); 6: Buckinghamshire Executive Partnership Report on Primary Care July 2023; 7: Community Pharmacy Workforce Survey 2022; 8: OCCG Primary Care Estates Strategy (2020)

There are estates pressures 

across the system for example, 

in Bucks, approximately 

570,000 patients are served by 

a primary care estate of 

approximately 24,121 m2. 

P
age 89



6

Our shared system vision for primary care

The challenges – and opportunities – facing primary care result from complex system-wide factors and a whole system response is required. BOB’s 

Joint Forward Plan commits the system to developing new models of care and primary care is at the heart of that. This is our future vision for primary 

care, but it requires other system partners to also work differently to deliver it.  

Our Shared Vision: 

Everyone in BOB has the support they need from primary care, working within a coordinated and integrated health and care system that supports people to stay well.

Enablers

Digital and data – Shared patient records are being used across the system to aid safe and effective clinical decision making based on real-time information

Resourcing – Resources have shifted from hospital settings into community settings and our contracts are joined up and based on outcomes that integrated services 

deliver.

Estates – We are making the best use of Public Estate and community assets to support primary care delivery.

Model of Care

We ensure people get to the right support first time 

to meet their needs 

We provide personalised, proactive care for people 

with complex needs, supported by Integrated 

Neighbourhood Teams

We design targeted support for everyone to stay well 

by understanding our population by a review of the 

information 

General Practice Pharmacy Optometry Dentistry

Primary Care

Workforce – Multi-skilled extended primary care teams work in an integrated way, at the heart of the system, and as part of integrated neighbourhood teams; flexible 

working is maximised; and workforce wellbeing is prioritised

P
age 90



7

We ensure people get to the right support first time to 

meet their needs 

Our vision is that people who contact the health system will be directed to the right health and care support to meet their needs first time – so that 

might not necessarily be a GP but the right health care professional and in the right place. 

The challenge today – using General Practice as an example

Supporting all our communities to access the high-quality 

information available on the NHS website. 

Signposting to this from community centres, health services, 

GP websites and apps, and through targeted outreach. 

Initial contact is with the right professional / service, which could 

be a virtual or face to face appointment with a (for example): 

✓ GP, Nurse, Physio or other staff member 

✓ Community Pharmacist, Optometrist or Dentist

✓ Urgent Care/Treatment Centre for minor injuries

✓ Weight management, audiology, or podiatry service

✓ VCSE and mental health services 

Supported by digitally-enabled communication between these 

different clinicians and services. 

Self-management Initial contactTriage & navigation

When people request support (e.g. through GP online form, 

by calling 111) care coordinators can triage the request – with 

clinical supervision – and direct it to the right place. 

Supported by digital triage tools, some of which use Artificial 

Intelligence, and backed by Population Health data that helps 

teams understand the health needs of the person 

requesting care. 

People report a worsening experience getting to the primary 

care support they need and are frustrated when they feel 

they are ‘bounced around the system’. 

Across BOB, patients having a good experience of 

making a GP appointment has decreased by 19%

When people find it difficult to get a GP or dentist 

appointment, they report that they sometimes go to A&E.

In the BOB ICS GP National Survey, people said:

Our future vision

went to A&E when they couldn’t get a GP 

appointment

visited A&E instead when the GP practice was 

closed

10% 

30% 

Staff feel under extreme pressure 

and some of the burden comes 

from a lack of smooth processes 

as people move between different 

parts of the system and can end up 

requiring multiple appointments 

before they get to the right place. 

Staff in General Practice in BOB 

would like to spend more time 

on prevention and chronic 

disease management:

41
%

9%

44
%

24%

Chronic
care

Prevention

Current

Future

55%

74%

2023

2021

1:BOB GP National Survey (2023); 2: Survey shared with General Practices across BOB as part of Primary Care Strategy work

P
age 91



8

We provide personalised, proactive care for people with complex 

needs, supported by Integrated Neighbourhood Teams

Our vision is to have Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INTs) made up of professionals from a range of disciplines, operating at the appropriate 

scale, to support people with more complex needs to stay well in their communities. 

GP

Community 

Matron

District Nurse 

& Therapy 

Practice 

Nurse

Social worker

Social 

Prescriber

To manage the challenges on the left, we need to move 

towards a more community-based model. This will require the 

system to shift resource from secondary care into the 

community and will impact the way the whole system works, 

especially secondary care with Primary Care. INTs will be the 

delivery vehicle for this model and our specialist workforce e.g. 

secondary care consultants, mental health, social care 

providers, VCSE sector, primary and community care, will have 

a key role to play in the INT. We will need to ensure job plans 

are aligned and resources and time commitment are agreed 

upfront.

INTs will support a defined group in the population who have 

complex needs and are at risk of experiencing the poorest 

outcomes. They work together with the individual to develop 

and deliver a personalised care plan, making sure they can 

access the support (medical and non-medical) they need. 

System partners work together to provide resources (staff, 

estates, funding) to these teams that come together regularly 

(daily or weekly), virtually and physically.

The footprint for these teams will be determined locally – 

with input from a range of system partners – using 

population health data to identify cohorts who will benefit the 

most.

Dentist

Community 

Pharmacist 

Optometrist 

People’s health needs are changing and many live 

with multiple long term conditions where traditional 

disease-specific care is not the best model. 

“More than one in four of the adult population live 

with more than two long term conditions”1

Many issues that affect people’s health are not 

purely medical and require input from multiple parts 

of the public sector, for example housing, benefits.  

“The Buckinghamshire population have higher 

levels of social isolation”2

Where people’s needs are not well-managed, they 

often end up requiring more urgent and costly 

treatment, that doesn’t provide a positive 

experience or improve longer term outcomes. 

Groups from more deprived areas tend to end up 

using the emergency care system more. 

“Higher acuity patients now make up a greater 

proportion of A&E activity than 4 years ago”3

The challenge today

Team of colleagues from a range of contributing organisations  

Our future vision

Mental Health 

Practitioner

1: BOB Joint Forward Plan (2023); 2: BOB fact pack and BOB Integrated Care Strategy (2023); 3: BOB ICB ECDS Data V2 (2023)

First contact 

physiotherapist

Geriatrician

Paediatrician

Psychiatrist

Occupational 

therapist

Care 

Coordinator

Patient supported by an 

Integrated Neighbourhood 

team who know them well 

and provide continuity 

of care 

VCSE

P
age 92



9

We design targeted support for everyone to stay well by 

understanding our population by a review of the information 

Our vision is to share and use data to inform targeted approaches to improve our population’s health, working in partnership with our Local 

Authorities and making every primary care contact count. 

Our future vision

Primary Care supports people from the beginning to the end of life, and prevention and health 

promotion are key throughout. Whether it’s stopping people becoming unwell in the first place, 

preventing ill health progressing, or minimising the impact of poor health. 

All four Primary Care pillars – General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry – 

have a critical role to play in prevention activities and the promotion of living a healthy life in local 

communities. With the right data being shared and discussed between all system partners, including 

Local Authorities, there is an opportunity to maximise preventative activities and deliver more 

personalised care. These include opportunistic activity – like blood pressure monitoring during eye 

checks, and proactive activity – like community pharmacy reaching out to those who may have 

undiagnosed high blood pressure, or dental checks in early years settings. There is also an 

opportunity to tackle the social, economic and environmental factors that affect health by supporting 

people to live healthier lives – like increasing access to tobacco dependency services and weight 

management services. However, we recognise the need to release capacity, before we can optimise 

our workforce’s full potential to deliver more preventative activity. Our future integrated model of care 

should help overcome this barrier.

In order to make and sustain a shift towards a more preventative system, we will use data to drive 

our decision making. We will embed a strategic and system-wide Population Health Management 

(PHM) approach to allow us to understand the health needs across our system and identify our most 

vulnerable and at risk groups - those who experience the poorest outcomes and inequalities. With 

this understanding, we will work with communities to design the right support for the population 

group we are looking at. We’ll evaluate and scale what works and stop or change what doesn’t. 

The challenge today

60,000 living in a deprived area, who 

develop poor health 10-15 years earlier 

than those in less deprived areas.

Approximately 11% of BOB’s 

population are active smokers, with 

nearly 8% of pregnant women 

actively smoking. 

Across BOB, 3 in 5 adults are 

overweight or obese. 68% of adults 

with a learning disability are 

overweight.

In BOB, there were 115k alcohol 

attributable admissions to hospitals 

between 2016/7 and 2020/21.

Nearly 18% of BOB’s population 

undertake less than 30 minutes of 

physical activity per week. 

1: BOB Joint Forward Plan (2023); 2: Fingertips Public Health Data (2023)

P
age 93



10

Four enablers are essential to delivering this vision

Focusing on the activities described over the next two pages should be a priority for the system, as workforce, digital and data, 

estates and resourcing are critical to deliver the future model of care. 

• Fully understand current and future workforce skills gaps and challenges 

around recruitment and retention particularly in rural areas 

• Develop longer term local plans, building partnerships to develop a sustainable 

supply of locally recruited and trained staff.

• Maximising uptake of apprenticeship roles developing the workforce through 

the apprenticeship levy.  

• Expansion of the coaching and mentoring and ‘looking after you’ programmes 

for all primary care staff and ensuring access to health and wellbeing support.

• A greater focus on continuous professional development and protected learning 

time across primary care.  Specific learning being commissioned according to 

training needs analysis, local and national priorities.

• Enable staff to move seamlessly between provider organising using the ‘BOB’ 

staff passport’ making shared and rotational roles much easier, which in turn 

results in an increase in staff retention as they have a better employment 

experience.

• Looking at Dentistry specifically, exploring different types of contract models to 

encourage recruitment, reviewing the skill mix model to align with new 

prevention priorities and the training required for this, and review of 

commissioning training courses to grow dental workforce. 

• In common with the rest of the country, funding is constrained in 

BOB Integrated Care System, and we need to look at ways to 

use the existing resources we have differently. Where possible, 

will look at how we use funding to focus on areas of higher 

deprivation.

• We know that other systems globally that achieve excellent 

outcomes for their populations have health and care systems that 

spend a far greater proportion of their budgets on primary care 

activities than we do, and this is a shift we are committed to 

making in BOB. 

We plan to do this in two ways:

• By changing the location and type of work our staff do, 

regardless of who they are employed by. For example, a 

respiratory consultant spending time each week with an 

Integrated Neighbourhood Team supporting people experiencing 

breathlessness.

• By changing the way we commission services so that we 

consolidate funding to support providers working together to 

deliver the best outcomes for a defined population – we will begin 

piloting this approach in 2024. 

Workforce Resource 

P
age 94



11

Four enablers are essential to delivering this vision

Digital & data and estates are key enablers to underpin the successful delivery of our future model of care. 

• Make greater use of virtual 

consultations and ‘hub working’ (with 

multiple professionals in same space) 

for non-complex same day care. 

• As part of the ICB plans for a shared 

estates strategy, set a clear 

expectation that both same day 

access hubs and Integrated 

Neighbourhood Teams should make 

use of the best available public estate. 

For example, this could mean a same 

day access hub located at an Urgent 

Care Centre, or an INT located in a 

community health centre. 

• Explore opportunities for partnership 

working between the ICB, Primary 

Care providers and wider local 

system partners, in particular local 

councils, to optimise use of public 

sector estate and community assets, 

and take opportunities to put health 

on the high street

Estates 

Enhancing our digital capabilities across the system will enable us all to work differently, release capacity by minimising existing administrative 

pressures and ensure people have a more seamless journey through the system. Building on the ICB’s Digital and Data Strategy we will:

Digitise Our Providers – deliver the minimum digital foundations across our providers

• Optimise digital triage tools within General Practice to free up time for staff from manual administrative tasks e.g. processing incoming requests for 

patients. This will include training for both clinical and administrative teams to ensure they get the full benefits out of digital tools.

• Carry out engagement on the requirements of GP principle clinical systems in readiness for the closure of the GP IT Futures framework that will 

support the ongoing development of our Electronic Patient Records.

Connect Our Care Settings – use digital, data and technology to connect our care settings

• Enable providers both within primary care e.g. GP, community pharmacy, optometry, dentistry and between primary and secondary care to 

digitally share patient records. This capability should support effective clinical decision making and enable smooth navigation of patients to the 

right part of the system.

• Sharing information in this way will reduce administrative burden e.g. for primary care teams, and empower secondary care providers to update 

medication changes on discharge from care automatically via the NHS Electronic Prescribing Service (ePS) and send a notification to the patient’s 

pharmacy to dispense medication in the community.

• Unlocking interoperability and shared record capabilities will support other digital technologies such as remote monitoring tools to empower 

patients, and their carers, to play a greater role in their care.

Transform Our Data Foundations – deliver the data foundations to provide the insights required to transform our systems and better meet 

the needs of our population

• Continue to spread and scale the existing Population Health Management infrastructure that exists in BOB across the entire system.

• Advance our data sharing agreements so we continue to benefit from the capabilities within the Thames Valley and Surrey Shared Care Record, 

and continue to work with clinical system providers to enable data sharing features within the BOB system. 

Digital and data  

P
age 95



12

Our approach to delivering this strategy

We are committed to ensuring this strategy turns into action and makes a difference to people living in BOB. The ICB will oversee delivery of the 

strategy at a local level, whilst empowering our staff working in primary care and system partners to make the required changes. These principles 

underpin our approach to delivering this strategy.

To achieve our vision, we need to 

prioritise a small number of high 

impact actions. Acknowledging 

our system is under pressure and 

capacity is limited, the actions we 

focus on must have the biggest 

impact on the challenges we are 

trying to address. 

Our delivery approach is 

underpinned by the continuous 

improvement principles outlined 

in NHS IMPACT. This approach 

will be bespoke for the three 

priorities and enable teams to:

✓ Understand the problem and 

biggest opportunities for 

improvement 

✓ use data to drive decision-

making

✓ test small incremental 

changes for our priority 

actions

✓ share learnings and learn 

from experience

✓ Create a ‘bottom-up’ culture of 

improvement 

Primary Care is a complex 

landscape of mostly independent 

contractors which means we 

cannot implement a “one size fits 

all” model. We need to ensure 

the detailed design of the model 

of care takes place at a 

neighbourhood level, where 

those working on the frontline of 

Primary Care are making the 

decisions, with their 

communities, about changes in 

the way we work. 

Create Focus 1
Delivery Programme

Approach2 Local Design 3

We recognise the need for the 

ICB to lead delivery of the 

strategy and to support the 

changes in the way we work. The 

ICB will act as a “convenor”, 

bringing together Primary Care 

with system partners to have 

meaningful discussions on how 

we deliver our priority actions 

and better meet the needs of our 

population. Further support will 

be given in enabling areas such 

as workforce, to ensure 

neighbourhoods are supported to 

drive the changes. 

ICB Support4

To deliver this strategy and 

enable a shift in the model of 

care, all system partners will be 

required to work in new and 

innovative ways. For example, 

acute providers will need to 

identify members of their 

workforce who can work in the 

community alongside primary 

care colleagues. All partners will 

need to identify opportunities to 

work more flexibly and share 

resources, including estates in 

new ways. 

System partner 

Support5

P
age 96



13

Our priorities for delivery

We have identified three areas where we can make a real impact on improving people’s health and wellbeing and reducing pressure on staff. Where 

possible, we will focus on working with communities that experience the most inequalities. In line with BOB’s overall system strategy, we have 

focused on aligning the priorities with two of our system goals and introducing more joined-up ways of working between services – rather than 

discrete priorities with one area like dentistry or general practice. The priorities are described in more detail on later pages.

Non-complex 

same-day care

Integrated 

Neighbourhood Teams

Cardiovascular Disease           

(CVD) prevention

General Practice, Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry and Dentistry will work together, with 

111 and Urgent Care, to better manage those 

who require support that day, but whose need 

is not complex. 

Around 70% of population health need is low 

complexity, and this makes up approx. 50% of 

GP activity.

Impact:

• Improved patient experience as they get the 

urgent support they need. 

• Release capacity in General Practice to focus 

those with more complex needs. 

General Practice, Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry and Dentistry will work together with 

community, mental health, acute and VCSE 

services to provide proactive, personalised care 

to a defined population group with more 

complex needs, for example, frail older people. 

Around 70% of health and social care spending 

is on long term conditions.

Impact:

• People’s health conditions are better managed 

reducing their need for unplanned hospital care.

• System capacity better coordinated and directed 

at need leading to greater staff satisfaction  

General Practice, Community Pharmacy, 

Optometry and Dentistry will work together with 

Local Authorities, VCSE and the wider health 

system to reduce the risk factors for 

Cardiovascular Disease (CVD) including 

smoking, obesity and high blood pressure.  

CVD is one of the most common causes of 

ongoing ill-health and deaths in BOB.

Impact:

- Reduce 797 heart attacks and 290 strokes (CVD 

events) in the next 4 years.

- Reduce demand on General Practice and 

Secondary Care and reduce the overall societal 

cost.

1 2 3

John Hopkins ACG System BOB Size of Prize 2023Long-term conditions and multi-morbidity | The King's 

Fund (kingsfund.org.uk)

P
age 97

https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/time-think-differently/trends-disease-and-disability-long-term-conditions-multi-morbidity
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/projects/time-think-differently/trends-disease-and-disability-long-term-conditions-multi-morbidity


14

We will continue to focus on other improvements in addition

Our three priorities focus on those areas where we need a system-wide focus to tackle the biggest challenges. There are other areas where work has 

been and will continue to be undertaken to make improvements to realise our vision. These align with our priorities in the BOB Joint Forward Plan 

and the Integrated Care Strategy, and we have highlighted a number of areas below.

• Support the public to optimise 

use of the NHS app so that they 

can see their medical records, 

order repeat prescriptions, 

manage routine appointments 

and see messages from their 

practice. 

• Improve the ways in which 

patients contact and interact 

with their GP and navigate 

care, including the 111 service - 

support provided to GPs through 

national and local improvement 

programmes.

• Continue to strengthen the 

primary care workforce 

including recruitment, retention, 

supporting staff practice to the 

top of their license.

• Improve the interface between 

primary and secondary care – 

to streamline processes and 

touchpoints for patients.

• Roll out of the Pharmacy First 

initiative in 2024 so that 

patients can access 

prescription-only medicine 

without needing to visit a GP 

e.g. for UTI treatment. 

• Upskilling of community 

pharmacists in line with upcoming 

new policy so that more 

pharmacists are able to 

provide assessments of 

patients and make prescribing 

decisions without patients having 

seen their GP first. 

• Continue to expand  vaccination 

service e.g. flu and covid

• Expand GP Connect to enable 

GP practices and authorised 

clinical staff (e.g. pharmacy 

professionals) to share and 

view electronic health records 

information and 

appointments information.

• Implementation of an 

electronic referral platform 

which will allow community 

optometrists to send routine 

referrals directly to the patients’ 

chosen hospital or single point 

of access.

• National intent to extend and 

roll out ‘in school’ eye testing 

in all schools from April 2024, 

with certain schools given 

priority for the rollout.

• National minor eye condition 

service to be expanded in 

early 2024 which aims to 

improve equity and accessibility 

for patients with most eye 

conditions seen at eye units and 

by GPs.

• Expanding hospital at home 

approach and redesigning 

hospital discharge model - 

integrating with local councils so 

more services and care can be 

moved into the community.

• Enabling patients to have 

direct access to community 

services such as 

musculosketal, audiology, 

weight management and 

community podiatry without 

needing to go to the GP first.

• Improve community-based 

support for those suffering 

with Mental Health e.g. The 

Thames Valley Link Programme 

(TVLP) has been established to 

provide extra support to children 

and young people who are often 

described as having ‘complex 

needs’ .

• Further expansion of the 

Flexible Commissioning scheme 

which provides care for 

patients from underserved 

communities.

• Continuing to undertake oral 

health assessments and 

increase dental hygiene in 

children and young people -  

targeting prevention 

interventions.

• Exploring implementation of 

mobile dental units.

• Building dental clinical 

workforce resilience

• Proactive management 

approach to dentistry though 

better oversight of access, 

quality and performance 

challenges.

General Practice Community Pharmacy Optometry Dentistry Community

P
age 98



15

ICB and Place support for local delivery

Clinical and operational teams, working with their communities, will be the ones who drive new ways of working. The ICB and Place teams will 

provide dedicated support to focused Local Action Teams working on our three priorities within an overall Primary Care Delivery Programme.

Local Action Teams

• Clinical and operational teams working with 

communities 

• Footprint determined locally as appropriate – 

could be PCN, Local Authority, other 

• Members determined and may differ for each 

priority but include all pillars of primary care 

and wider system partners

• Leadership of teams must be clearly agreed 

for each priority

Place-level

• Place-based Partnerships are accountable for 

delivery of the priorities 

• Place Delivery Teams will be established to be 

responsible for delivery and first line of 

support for Local Action Teams

ICB-level

• The BOB ICB Primary and Community 

Care Strategic Transformation 

Coordination Group is accountable for 

delivery of the priorities 

• The Primary Care Team is 

responsible for delivery of the 

priorities, working closely with ICB 

leads for Workforce, Digital & Data, 

Estates and Resourcing.

The delivery structure will need to 

align to the overall BOB ICB 

Operating Model that is being 

developed.  P
age 99



16

A phased approach working with cohorts across the three priorities 

The Primary Care Delivery Programme will bring together multidisciplinary teams from across Neighbourhood, Place and ICB levels to deliver our 

three high impact actions, across a three year period. Our Placed-Based-Partnerships will be key to supporting delivery of this approach and driving 

improvement. Two of our priority workstreams are aligned with our wider system goals on CVD Prevention and Integrated Neighbourhood teams.

March – August 2024

Three sites in each 

Place

March – August 2025

Up to nine sites in each 

Place

C
o

h
o

rt
 1

September 2024 – 

February 2025

Up to six sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 2

C
o

h
o

rt
 3

September 2024 – 

February 2025

Three sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 1 March - August 2025

Up to six sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 2

September 2025 – 

February 2026

Up to nine sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 3

Co-design blueprint of 

INTs in each Place

Mobilisation

‘Site’ = Neighbourhood level team e.g. Primary Care 

Network (PCN), or multiple PCNs working together 

or any appropriate scale at a 

local level.

Priority 

workstreams

March - August 2025

Three sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 1

September 2025 – 

February 2026

Up to six sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 2 March – August 2026

Up to nine sites in each 

PlaceC
o

h
o

rt
 3

1

2024 2025 2026

Non-complex 

same-day care

2

Integrated 

Neighbourhood 

Teams

3

CVD 

Prevention

P
age 100



17

Thank you for reading this draft strategy 

(summary version).

We are grateful to all those in the BOB 

Integrated Care System who have helped to 

shape this draft strategy.

We need your views and feedback to help 

agree our final strategy, so please do share 

your thoughts via 

engagement.bobics@nhs.net

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West (BOB) 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) 

 
Date of meeting:  24 January 2024 Item:  

 

Title of paper BOB ICB Communication and Engagement Strategy Update  
 

Paper is for:   Discussion  Decision  Information  
 

 
Purpose and executive summary:   
 
The BOB ICB Communications and Engagement Strategy was approved by the Board in July 2023. 
This paper outlines some areas of work undertaken between August and December 2023 to illustrate 
how the ICB is implementing the strategy and developing how we engage with our population and 
stakeholders.  
The papers covers: 

• Developing our engagement approach 
• Engagement activities 
• Communications campaigns and activities 

 
 
 

Action required:    
The BOB JHOSC members are asked to: 

• Note the work undertaken by the BOB ICB to implement the BOB ICB Communications & 
Engagement Strategy 

• Discuss the content themes and any further points for consideration  
 
 

Author: Sarah Adair, BOB ICB Director of Communications & Engagement (Acting) 
 

Date of paper: 10 January 2024 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 9

https://www.bucksoxonberksw.icb.nhs.uk/media/2974/20230718-bob-icb-board-item-13-communications-and-engagement-strategy.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Joint Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee  

Communication & Engagement Strategy Update  
 
Introduction 
1. The BOB ICB Communications and Engagement Strategy was approved by the Board in July 

2023. This paper outlines some areas of work undertaken between August and December 
2023 to illustrate how the Integrated Care Board (ICB) is implementing the strategy and 
developing how we engage with our population and stakeholders1.  

2. We are looking to refresh the design and ways of working of our Communications and 
Engagement Function. This work will ensure that we are optimally organised to deliver our 
strategic objectives as an ICB. Through this work, we are particularly looking to strengthen our 
approach to engaging with partners, patients and our wider population.   

 
Development of patient and public engagement 
3. As we implement our ICB Communications and Engagement Strategy, we aim to create an ICB 

built on effective engagement and partnerships to successfully serve people across BOB. We 
recognise there continues to be much to do to develop our work with communities and people 
within BOB. As above, we are currently reviewing resources and our capability to ensure we 
have the right team in place to deliver this important work and to develop a culture across the 
ICB of working with our residents across the organisation.  

4. Your Voice in Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West engagement portal: 
The ICB continues to develop its digital engagement platform to give people across BOB the 
opportunity to get involved and help shape the future of health and care. ‘Your Voice in 
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire & Berkshire West’ enables people to have their say on projects 
and proposals related to health and care.  

5. People can register to be regular users of the platform and can be kept informed on work of the 
ICB and partners. We currently have 884 people registered on the system. We aim to run a 
campaign over the coming year to raise awareness of the site and encourage people to register 
to received information about the work of the ICB and invitations to participate in our work.  

6. Developing our partnerships with Healthwatch and the voluntary sector: We recognise 
the value of Healthwatch’s contributions for our engagement and involvement ambitions and 
ensuring we can meet the needs of our population and are working closely with our five 
Healthwatch groups across our system. We have strong relationships with our Healthwatchs, 
which have supported place-based projects, provided essential access to patient voices, and 
given detailed analysis and recommendations. 

7. Healthwatch continue to provide independent scrutiny and challenge where appropriate as they 
are the independent health and social care champions for their places. We meet with them 
regularly and use their insights and public feedback to inform our strategies and plans. 

8. The ICB funds our five Healthwatch groups to support place-based projects including the 
development of GP patient participation groups and reaching out to local communities we are 
not able to reach ourselves.  

9. Working closely with our Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector is also 
key to successful engagement. We continue to work with the sector to better understand 

 
1 Stakeholders - a person or external organisation that may be interested or affected by the work of the BOB ICB.  

Page 105

Appendix 

https://www.bucksoxonberksw.icb.nhs.uk/media/2974/20230718-bob-icb-board-item-13-communications-and-engagement-strategy.pdf
https://yourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com/icp-strategy-engagement
https://yourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com/icp-strategy-engagement


 

Page 2 of 8 
 

people’s and community’s needs, experiences and aspirations for health, care, and wellbeing. 
The BOB VCSE Health Alliance is an important channel for engagement and we work closely 
with them. Through them we will be able to work with community leaders, reaching out to those 
affected by inequalities - strengthening relationships, building trust, and enabling the voice of 
people and communities to be heard. 

10. Working with our local communities and Community Connectors Programme: There is a 
wide network of GP patient participation groups across BOB. Locally based groups work with 
their practice and with the ICB through a variety of practice-based meetings and wider place 
meetings. These meetings are regularly attended by ICB colleagues to share news and 
updates on developments within their area, receive feedback and discuss ways of widening 
their engagement within their communities. 

11. We are a Wave 4 CORE20PLUS Connectors site and are working with the five Healthwatch 
organisations, our delivery partners, to develop a network of Community Connectors. The 
Connectors work with parents and carers of children in more deprived areas to capture their 
experiences of oral health and we will use these insights to drive improvements. 

12. Through the Connectors programme, we have been successful in bidding for support from the 
Health Creation Alliance to conduct an appreciative inquiry workshop with a focus on turning 
insights into action. The workshop is being planned for February 2024 and will drive the 
development of an ICB wide action plan. 

13. There are also three Community Participation Action Research projects ongoing across BOB 
on the Cost-of-Living Crisis exploring the inequalities faced by marginalised communities. Our 
community researchers are halfway through their training and in the data collection phase of 
their work. We expect that each organisation will analyse their data around January when they 
start to refine their research: 
a. Caribbean Community Lunch Club – 3 community researchers are using interviews and 

focus groups to investigate issues around the cost-of-living crisis and mental health of the 
Black community in Aylesbury. 

b. St Vincent & the Grenadines 2nd Generation, High Wycombe - 3 community researchers 
are using a survey and interviews to explore links between the cost of living and health 
inequalities among African, Caribbean, and Indian communities with an additional focus on 
maternal health. 

c. Healthwatch Oxfordshire working with researchers from Oxford Community Action - 2 
community researchers are exploring the reasons why people attend their foodbank service 
and whether it suits their needs. They plan to use the learning to improve their service as 
well as taking it to organisations which supply the foodbank. They are using a questionnaire 
and planning to develop a video. 

14. Research Engagement Network: Across BOB we (the ICB, the BOB VCSE Alliance, Health 
Innovation Thames Valley and Oxford and local research organisations – the NIHR Applied 
Research Collaboration Oxford and Thames Valley and the Clinical Research Network Thames 
Valley and South Midlands) have been given money to develop a network to support better 
ways of working with local communities.  

15. The idea of the network is to help make sure that the views of all communities are included in 
health and care research and healthcare planning. We want to make sure research and 
planning becomes more equitable. 

16. We know that great work is already happening but may not always be shared with everyone 
who could act on it. We also know that the views of all communities are not included, and that, 
at times, communities can feel overburdened by requests, particularly if they do not receive 

Page 106

https://bobvcsehealthalliance.org.uk/
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.healthinnovationoxford.org%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csarah.adair%40nhs.net%7C64e7dd8661744041238308dc00aad2b7%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638385980877481249%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MIAh11CamtClTzw447HkG%2BiCSJ8LCps9h9ri6dRRw9I%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.healthinnovationoxford.org%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csarah.adair%40nhs.net%7C64e7dd8661744041238308dc00aad2b7%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638385980877481249%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MIAh11CamtClTzw447HkG%2BiCSJ8LCps9h9ri6dRRw9I%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.arc-oxtv.nihr.ac.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csarah.adair%40nhs.net%7C64e7dd8661744041238308dc00aad2b7%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638385980877481249%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=x8M5KpWz%2Bnxq8bKgiC%2FepIECDdagBDbjtpAAy17zhJw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.arc-oxtv.nihr.ac.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csarah.adair%40nhs.net%7C64e7dd8661744041238308dc00aad2b7%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638385980877481249%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=x8M5KpWz%2Bnxq8bKgiC%2FepIECDdagBDbjtpAAy17zhJw%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flocal.nihr.ac.uk%2Flcrn%2Fthames-valley-and-south-midlands%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csarah.adair%40nhs.net%7C64e7dd8661744041238308dc00aad2b7%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638385980877637532%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NfjgSV3oTWyw%2B7KrSgwe9ksK23NcYAz4lg0evmFVzrg%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flocal.nihr.ac.uk%2Flcrn%2Fthames-valley-and-south-midlands%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csarah.adair%40nhs.net%7C64e7dd8661744041238308dc00aad2b7%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638385980877637532%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NfjgSV3oTWyw%2B7KrSgwe9ksK23NcYAz4lg0evmFVzrg%3D&reserved=0


 

Page 3 of 8 
 

feedback. We want to understand better what is happening already so that we can improve 
things for everybody. 

17. We are currently mapping what research and engagement is happening across BOB with local 
communities via a survey being shared across the NHS, local authorities, research networks 
and the voluntary and community sector. Feedback will be analysed, and a report produced 
with the aim of developing an action plan to develop a network as outlined above.  

18. This work will help us to understand our public better, who we are talking to, about what and 
where the gaps are. From this we will develop a plan to develop our collective reach to under-
represented people and communities. 

19. Work to set up an independent advisory panel for the ICB has been paused while this work is 
undertaken. It is hoped we can get to know our population and communities better in order to 
identify and encourage participation in an advisory panel from those who would not normally 
get involved in this form of engagement. 

20. Developing a citizens’ panel: We have progressed work to develop a citizens’ panels, which 
is a panel are made up of members of the community in the ICB who complete regular surveys 
/ attend focus group to give their thoughts about different aspects of healthcare delivered 
locally.  

21. Citizens’ Panels should aim to be representative and are useful for getting a snapshot of the 
community’s opinions on a particular topic. It is important to note citizens’ panels can be limited 
in scope. However, they are a valuable tool to be used alongside other ICB engagement 
activities.  

22. We are currently developing a business case with different options for creating and running a 
citizens’ panel across the BOB ICS. 
 

ICB / ICS programmes of work and campaigns 
23. Non-emergency patient transport: The ICB is in the process of re-procuring its Non-

Emergency Patient Transport Services (NEPTS) contract, with the current contract ending in 
March 2025.  

24. With this re-procurement, the ICB’s overarching aim is to commission an improved, dynamic 
and responsive patient transport service which ensures eligible NEPTS patients are 
transported in a timely, safe and efficient manner between their homes and the relevant NHS 
service.  

25. In redesigning our current services, it is essential for us to gather the experiences and insights 
of non-emergency patient transport users and their family / carers. This provides us with 
invaluable insight to identify new and innovative ways to review the service.  

26. The ICB undertook an eight-week programme of engagement, between September and 
November 2023, where we asked current service users and their families / carers how we 
could improve their experience with transport services in BOB.  

27. Only a small number of responses were received (29) despite promotion through many routes 
including Healthwatch networks, VCSE sector networks, social media, press etc. 

28. An engagement report is currently being developed and will inform the programme of work; it 
will also be made available on YourVoice.  

29. Reading Urgent Care Centre: The Reading Urgent Care Centre (UCC) is an 18-month pilot 
which is due to end in March 2024. A short survey was developed to understand patient 
experience and use of the UCC to input into future plans for the centre. It ran in October and 
November 2023 and a survey for key stakeholders and providers ran in October 2023. 

Page 107

https://yourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com/


 

Page 4 of 8 
 

30. The survey was publicised on social media, through local authority networks, featured in 
Berkshire West Place patient newsletter and via Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust 
(RBFT) internal and external publications. Staff from the ICB also visited the UCC with paper 
copies to encourage completion of the survey by people in the waiting area.  

31. 226 responses to the survey were received. Most of the respondents were from the Reading 
area; 151 patients followed by 48 patients from Wokingham. Key findings included: 

• The predominant source of patient referrals was the RBFT Emergency Department, (ED) 
with secondary channels including recommendations from family and friends, and 
subsequent referrals from GP surgeries. 

• The survey demonstrates that the demands on ED, GP practices and NHS 111 would have 
risen due to patients seeking care from these services if they were unable to access the 
UCC. 88 respondents would have attended an ED if they were not able to use the UCC. 

32. Primary Care Strategy Development: The ICB is working with health and care partners to 
develop a strategy and implementation plan for the future of primary care. This includes 
general practice, community pharmacy, optometry (eye care) and dentistry across BOB. 

33. As part of this programme of work, we launched the ‘Primary Care Conversation’ on 17 
November asking people to share their views and experiences about these services. The draft 
strategy for engagement was published on 10 January 2024 and is hosted on our engagement 
website, along with an executive summary, an easy read version and word version to support 
access to the information to those who are visually impaired or would like to translate into a 
different language. People can complete a survey associated with the draft strategy or give 
general feedback in a number of ways.  

34. Engagement will continue until the end of February. We are keen to take the time to listen to 
the voice of all our stakeholders and population so that these views shape the final strategy 
before ratification in May at the ICB board meeting. 

35. Winter communications and Urgent and emergency care: While the need for urgent care 
services is a year-round challenge across the NHS and social care, it is the winter season 
which brings the most pressures. This coupled with on-going industrial action has meant that 
this year we have adapted our approach to winter communications planning to ensure activity 
is delivered closely and, where possible, in partnership with our NHS Trusts and local 
authorities across BOB. 

36. Our Winter communications plan builds on the good and on-going work undertaken across the 
system to try to alleviate pressures on urgent care and encourage people to use services 
appropriately and advise residents how to stay well. Additionally, it aims to demonstrate how 
communications and engagement will support the health and social care system across BOB to 
deliver resilient, safe, effective, and sustainable care for local people over the winter period.  

37. A series of dedicated campaigns and activity are being delivered throughout the winter months 
using national materials that are appropriate to our system requirements as well as tailored 
campaigns for place as required.  

38. A central digital resource centre has been created to allow resources to be shared and 
downloaded across the different organisations and is available here. 

39. A press release to launch the winter plan for each place was released in October to outline how 
the system is working together and preparing for the busy winter months. 

40. The following campaigns and activity are running throughout the winter months: 

• #StaySafeInWinter to promote the appropriate use of NHS 111, Minor Injuries and ED or 
999. The campaign promotes the idea of ‘choosing well’ and ‘making the right choice’. 

Page 108

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com%2Fprimary-care-strategy&data=05%7C02%7Csarah.adair%40nhs.net%7C2d7e8ea4d49a4211edea08dc128bce8e%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638405638868505294%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vTtqIOG8nc5qUW%2BhHs5ROPkCPe2pqWuNwxQCwqFtK54%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com%2Fprimary-care-strategy&data=05%7C02%7Csarah.adair%40nhs.net%7C2d7e8ea4d49a4211edea08dc128bce8e%7C37c354b285b047f5b22207b48d774ee3%7C0%7C0%7C638405638868505294%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=vTtqIOG8nc5qUW%2BhHs5ROPkCPe2pqWuNwxQCwqFtK54%3D&reserved=0
https://www.bucksoxonberksw.icb.nhs.uk/winter-comms-planning/
https://www.bucksoxonberksw.icb.nhs.uk/news/?page=2


 

Page 5 of 8 
 

• ‘Think which service’ and ‘Help us, help you’ stay well this winter; these campaigns are 
running throughout November, December, January and February to promote the ‘help us 
help you’ messages by signposting services and self-care. 

• System pressures and Industrial Action support as and when required using social media 
assets tailored to place to support the variation in urgent care services in each area e.g., 
supporting getting people home etc. 

 

 
 

41. Part of the winter communications plan is to promote support for childhood illnesses. This 
communication activity promotes strategies that support all children and young people to make 
healthier choices, and which will allow them to thrive and achieve. Social media messaging for 
parents and carers continues to promote: 

• At times of significant pressure, we still want the public to come forward if they need help, 
but we want to ensure they’re using the right services (e.g. they know when to go to a 
pharmacy, their GP practice, use 111 or call 999).  

• At times when services may not be open as usual it’s helpful to highlight what people can 
do to access urgent help 
 

42. Activity started in November and new campaign assets were created to support as follows:   

 
43. During September and October we created a new digital campaign to support Hospital @ 

Home Services in Oxfordshire. A media release to launch the new campaign is available here.  
44. A suite of videos have been created hosted on the Staywell-BOB website here:https://staywell-

bob.nhs.uk/hospital-at-home/ the videos are on the BOB ICB YouTube account here. 
45. We are working with social care partners to provide communications support around the new 

discharge pathways that speed up how patients are discharged from hospital and how people 
can be supported to get the care they need in their community. 

Page 109

https://www.bucksoxonberksw.icb.nhs.uk/news/posts/bob-icb-news/december-2023/new-video-explains-how-people-can-receive-urgent-care-at-home/
https://staywell-bob.nhs.uk/hospital-at-home/
https://staywell-bob.nhs.uk/hospital-at-home/
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLWLHGNBoq6i-1ulqggRN4P3oFLKYnp5uR


 

Page 6 of 8 
 

46. In Berkshire West a suite of communications has been prepared in partnership with RBFT and 
Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust, to raise awareness and highlight the benefits of 
virtual wards to NHS staff in primary care and acute settings, patients and their families. There 
are currently 12 virtual pathways in Berkshire West. The communications include leaflets, 
social media graphics and a patient case story video. BBC TV South featured interviews with 
Berkshire West staff and a patient in a feature on virtual wards this in December. 

47. A campaign to help patients across the BOB footprint understand the different roles of 
healthcare professionals working at their GP practice will be rolled out over winter in a bid to 
ease pressure on acute settings and to educate people on how a modern GP practice now 
operates. A series of videos featuring a wide range of practice staff including physician 
associates, paramedics, care navigators and mental health practitioners has been produced. 
The aim is to create a better understanding of the different roles at GP practices. 

48. A fresh approach to help ease winter pressure on ED within BOB has been run this year with 
more eye-catching messages being used across a range of social media channels. And a new 
campaign around discharge has also been launched to help improve flow through our local 
hospitals including RBFT. 

 
 
49. COVID-19 and Flu Vaccinations: Ensuring people know who, how, what, and why they are 

being offered winter vaccination helps support urgent and emergency care planning and 
minimise hospital admissions for respiratory and associated illness from both viruses over the 
busy winter season. 

50. Our communications activity took a flexible approach driven by regularly updated data so we 
could deal with localised communication challenges as they arose, as well as share best 
practice across the region built around previous data, insight, learning. 

51. We worked with the NHS South Central and West Commissioning Support Unit to develop our 
own in-house resources, focussing on eligible groups identified by the Joint Committee on 
Vaccination and Immunisation. These were shared with Place partners, residents, health and 
care staff, voluntary groups, and local community leaders to help us deliver the vaccination 
programme. 

52. We also made use of national/regional level materials and successfully bid for additional 
funding to focus specifically on engagement with lower uptake groups.  

53. Our communications focus was steered by regular reporting to help us: 

• Show residents it was easy to access the vaccine when and where they are most likely to 
want it.  

• Provide reassurance/ motivation for those who remain hesitant, yet open to a conversation: 
Promoting fair information, not judgement.  

Page 110

https://www.youtube.com/watch?si=MIfOFDg54zenTU_g&v=DkzKVcrP4AM&feature=youtu.be


 

Page 7 of 8 
 

• Use trusted voices/ influencers to build faith, provide validation, authentic voices, and value.  
54. We used multiple channels including new Stay Well public facing webpages with maps and lists 

of available local clinics, bus adverts (digital screens inside and adverts outside), Pharmacy 
bag adverts, Spotify local press, advert vans, posters in children’s play centres, shopping 
centre lift door decals and large digital screens, translated FAQ leaflets, fireworks night 
promotion, key rings to Trust staff, community newsletters, GP Bulletin and GP practice digital 
screens, social media, community groups to co-design materials, mail drops and signage in low 
uptake areas and other printed materials. 

 

 
 

55. Quantitative evaluation of some of the paid for aspects of the campaign between 12 September 
- 18 December includes: 
• BOB ICB Stay Well site 9,500 views. (all materials had QR code to the webpage) 
• Overall reach of 735,800 and 934,080 impressions across BOB Facebook and X platforms 
• Pharmacy bags with pregnancy message: 208 direct engagements 
• Spotify ads (for young people with underlying health conditions and parents of 2 and 3 year 

olds): 
o 497,999 impressions 
o 880 click throughs 
o 53,000 reach 
o 94% listen through rate 

• Fireworks night for 2 and 3 year olds flu vaccine (Oxfordshire):  
o 19,000 adults and 5,000 children attended 
o Pre-event emails: 24,000 and post-event email: 11,995 
o Facebook: 1,154 followers, reach 17,800, 1,400 engagement 
o Instagram: 489 followers, reach 1,200, 665 engagement 
o Event digital screens: vaccine adverts displayed 60 times 
o Radio: 110 adverts delivered. 
o  

56. BOB ICB Stakeholder Newsletter: The BOB ICB Communications and Engagement Strategy, 
committed to the introduction of a BOB-wide Stakeholder Newsletter. Following engagement 
with communications colleagues at all our providers, local authorities and with our place 
directors, the first edition of the monthly newsletter will be published this month.  

57. The format of the newsletter includes a section containing news and images relevant to health, 
social care and public health across the whole BOB system and three place specific sections 
with more ‘local’ interest. 

Page 111

https://staywell-bob.nhs.uk/covid-19-and-flu-vaccines/vaccine-clinics/
https://staywell-bob.nhs.uk/covid-19-and-flu-vaccines/vaccine-clinics/
https://www.bucksoxonberksw.icb.nhs.uk/media/2974/20230718-bob-icb-board-item-13-communications-and-engagement-strategy.pdf


 

Page 8 of 8 
 

58. Initially we will distribute to all BOB MPs, local authority chief executives and leaders, scrutiny 
committee chairs and Health and Wellbeing Boards, NHS Trust boards, Local Medical 
Committee chairs, Pharmacy, Optometry and Dental committees, Healthwatches, GP Patient 
Participation Groups (where possible) and communications colleagues across all NHS and 
local authority partners for cascade through their networks There is an option within the 
newsletter for people to subscribe directly and it will be publicised via our social media 
channels to encourage members of the public to subscribe.  

59. The monthly newsletter will be adapted and amended as we progress through the publication 
schedule and receive feedback from recipients. 

 
Future work and next steps 
60. To progress the business case for a citizen’s panel to ensure we engage with a 

representative group of residents across BOB. 
61. To develop an advisory panel which will bring together representatives from across the ICS 

to help develop and guide our approach to engagement. This group will provide an 
independent “review, check and challenge” function, and we will seek a representative 
membership from across our partners. The Research Engagement Network project will help 
inform the development of this panel. 

62. To further develop evaluation processes so we can measure our reach and impact of 
communications and engagement across the system. 

63. To progress the campaign to raise awareness of roles within primary care: there is a 
national campaign to raise awareness of the different roles within GP practice. We have built 
upon this with the production of a suite of videos featuring a range of GP practice staff to 
highlight the different roles within a GP practice. An awareness campaign will run early in the 
year as we finalise the draft primary care strategy and implementation plan. 

64. To develop a culture of involvement within the ICB:  engagement culture needs to be 
developed across the ICB so we can gain the trust of our local population. The culture that 
develops will be about wanting to be enriched by dialogue and other peoples’ ideas and not 
having to listen. Part of our own internal programme of work will be to offer training and 
development opportunities for staff to share methods and ways of working with the public and 
benefits of doing so to encourage a who organisation approach to engagement.  

65. To implement a campaign to raise awareness of YourVoice in Buckinghamshire, 
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West to increase membership and audience to engage with via the 
digital platform. 

 

Page 112

https://yourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com/
https://yourvoicebob-icb.uk.engagementhq.com/


 

 

Healthwatch brief to Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care 
Board (BOB ICB) Joint Health and Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC). 
January 2024.  

The Local Healthwatch at Place within the BOB ICB footprint consist of Healthwatch Bucks, 
Healthwatch Oxfordshire and three Healthwatch across Berkshire West (Reading, 
Wokingham and West Berkshire).  Whilst all have the responsibilities of local Healthwatch 
under Health and Social Care Act (2012) each of us is independently constituted and works in 
response to place, population and setting.  

Together, we work jointly to support and champion the voice and involvement of our local 
populations in health and social care decision making across the BOB ICB.  

As a group, we have supported the development of the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and 
Berkshire West Primary Care Strategy in the following ways: 

• Healthwatch attendance at the Primary Care Strategy Away day in November hosted 
by BOB ICB on the draft strategy. We have advocated throughout for greater patient 
and public engagement and involvement in its development. 

• Promoting the strategy consultation on social media, website and news bulletins to 
our networks and public.   

At Place: 

• Healthwatch in Berkshire West has focused on a GP access project to find out about 
public understanding of new ways of working within GP practices. This was initiated 
before the Primary Care Strategy work. Project findings will be fed into the strategy 
prior to publication of the final report which is expected in March 2024. 

• Healthwatch Bucks will be holding a webinar with BOB ICB on 30 January 2024 aimed 
at representatives from Buckinghamshire Patient Participation Groups to hear from 
the ICB about the draft strategy and give feedback.  

• They shared feedback from the public on primary care, notably difficulties in 
accessing general practice and NHS dentistry.  They shared numerous reports which 
look into patient and public experience of primary care including GP care when you're 
deaf, Deaf or hard of hearing. 

• Healthwatch Oxfordshire hosted a webinar in December 2023 to enable members of 
the public to feed into the Primary Care Strategy development, attended by 39 people 
and available to see on our website. This was attended by Dan Leveson ICB Place 
Director and other reps from the ICB primary care teams.  

• They also provided all relevant research reports giving insights on primary care in 
Oxfordshire with KPMG as part of baseline for the strategy. An additional summary 
report was published in Nov 2023 ‘What you told us about Primary Care’ based on 
feedback on primary care services via online feedback reviews. (See: Reports - 
Healthwatch Oxfordshire)   

We encourage BOB ICB JHOSC to reflect on the engagement and involvement process 
undertaken for patients and the public in the development of the Primary Care Strategy.  

Page 113

Agenda Item 10

https://www.healthwatchbucks.co.uk/category/results/
https://www.healthwatchbucks.co.uk/2023/06/gp-surgery-care-when-youre-deaf-deaf-or-hard-of-hearing/
https://www.healthwatchbucks.co.uk/2023/06/gp-surgery-care-when-youre-deaf-deaf-or-hard-of-hearing/
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhealthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk%2Freports&data=05%7C02%7Czoe%40healthwatchbucks.co.uk%7C3223acad2b4941f9431808dc0d40af3e%7C57e6f0721bf24ca98c5da9706e84c82b%7C1%7C0%7C638399818697483609%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qqSjJdpmTbP5ejLZBTS3dSA%2Bk5yDp1jlBsHQgMU6orQ%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhealthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk%2Freports&data=05%7C02%7Czoe%40healthwatchbucks.co.uk%7C3223acad2b4941f9431808dc0d40af3e%7C57e6f0721bf24ca98c5da9706e84c82b%7C1%7C0%7C638399818697483609%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qqSjJdpmTbP5ejLZBTS3dSA%2Bk5yDp1jlBsHQgMU6orQ%3D&reserved=0


 

 

Statutory guidance from NHS England Working in partnership with people and communities 
clearly lays out the importance of involvement of public and service users from the start in 
development of strategies and services. The process, route and communication for patients 
and public on engagement in the Primary Care Strategy was not clearly mapped from the 
start, and was initiated well into strategy development.  Learning, evaluation and reflection 
on this process will be key to building better patient engagement by the system when 
planning future strategies and programmes.   

Of relevance to this, Healthwatch Oxfordshire published a series of reports, 'Community 
Research in Oxfordshire'  (November 2023) based on interviews with both community 
members and systems partners- highlighting barriers to authentic co production and 
engagement. This is of direct relevance to BOB ICB engagement and insight gathering, and 
identified key principles noted by community members:  

• Nothing about us without us 
• Commit to action 
• Value lived experience and time 
• Be open, transparent and accountable 

 

Page 114

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.england.nhs.uk%2Fpublication%2Fworking-in-partnership-with-people-and-communities-statutory-guidance%2F&data=05%7C02%7Czoe%40healthwatchbucks.co.uk%7Ce5aace3a71954345a43808dc0f9cfac3%7C57e6f0721bf24ca98c5da9706e84c82b%7C1%7C0%7C638402414509096443%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gICUXJXO%2F8U0NZd85MQ1LIfLIAy3BI9avEkdrXTjhX4%3D&reserved=0
https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/report/community-research-in-oxfordshire-november-2023/
https://healthwatchoxfordshire.co.uk/report/community-research-in-oxfordshire-november-2023/

	Agenda
	Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee Agenda
	Membership:
	Webcasting notice


	4 Minutes
	Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee minutes
	Agenda Item


	7 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board update
	8 Draft BOB ICB Primary Care Strategy
	2024.01 BOB draft Primary Care Strategy
	Default Section
	Slide 1: Transforming Primary Care  General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry 
	Slide 2: We want to hear your views on this draft strategy
	Slide 3: Foreword
	Slide 4: Contents 

	Introduction
	Slide 5: Introduction
	Slide 6: Why we need a primary care strategy 
	Slide 7: Approach to developing  this draft strategy 
	Slide 8: Engagement so far

	Primary Care in BOB today
	Slide 9: Primary Care in BOB today
	Slide 10: Primary care supports our communities
	Slide 11: Primary care is at the heart of our system
	Slide 12: Our primary care system has many strengths
	Slide 13: There are challenges within primary care and within the wider system that require new ways of working
	Slide 14: If we do nothing, the mismatch between demand and capacity will continue to grow
	Slide 15: Snapshot of what we have heard from the public so far
	Slide 16: We are learning from other systems who have tackled these challenges
	Slide 17: Learning from the Clalit System 

	Our shared vision for Primary Care
	Slide 18: Our Shared Vision for Primary Care
	Slide 19: Our shared system vision for primary care
	Slide 20: How will it feel for primary care staff? 
	Slide 21: How will it feel for primary care staff? 
	Slide 22: How will it feel for patients? 
	Slide 23: We ensure people get to the right support first time to  meet their needs  
	Slide 24: Changing how we work so people get the right support first time
	Slide 25: We provide personalised, proactive care for people with complex needs, supported by Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
	Slide 26: Changing how we work so people with complex needs receive personalised, proactive care
	Slide 27: We design targeted support for everyone to stay well by understanding our population by a review of the information 
	Slide 28: Changing how we work so we can use data to understand our population, and to design targeted support for everyone to stay well 
	Slide 29: Four enablers are essential to delivering this vision
	Slide 30: Four enablers are essential to delivering this vision

	Our approach to delivery
	Slide 31: Our Approach to Delivery
	Slide 32: Our approach to delivering this strategy
	Slide 33: Our priorities for delivery
	Slide 34: We will continue to focus on other improvements in addition
	Slide 35: ICB and Place support for local delivery
	Slide 36: A phased approach working with cohorts across the three priorities 
	Slide 37: Action plan to establish the Primary Care Delivery Programme
	Slide 38: Priority 1
	Slide 39: Our first priority is to expand at-scale triage and  navigation to appropriately direct same-day non-complex need
	Slide 40: An example of a future same-day access pathway
	Slide 41: Triage and navigation will be designed locally but with common features
	Slide 42: Action Plan for same-day non-complex care
	Slide 43: Priority 2
	Slide 44: Our second priority is to create Integrated Neighbourhood Teams to coordinate care and support for at least one population cohort
	Slide 45: Defining an Integrated Neighbourhood Team for BOB 
	Slide 46: Action Plan for Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
	Slide 47: Priority 3
	Slide 48: Our third priority is to align primary care to support a  system-wide focus on preventing Cardiovascular Disease
	Slide 49: Example future integrated local approach to CVD prevention
	Slide 50: Action plan for Cardiovascular Disease prevention

	Oversight of progress
	Slide 51: Oversight of Progress
	Slide 52: We will ensure accountability for delivery is clear, based on  quality improvement principles
	Slide 53: We will develop a scorecard to track progress 
	Slide 54: Glossary of terms 
	Slide 55: Thank you for reading this draft strategy.  We are grateful to all those in the BOB Integrated Care System who have helped to shape this draft strategy.  We need your views and feedback to help agree our final strategy, so please do share your t


	2024.01 BOB draft Primary Care Strategy Exec Summary
	Slide 1: Transforming Primary Care – Executive Summary  General Practice, Community Pharmacy, Optometry and Dentistry 
	Slide 2: Why we need a primary care strategy 
	Slide 3: Approach to developing  this draft strategy 
	Slide 4: Our primary care system has many strengths
	Slide 5: There are challenges within primary care and within the wider system that require new ways of working
	Slide 6: Our shared system vision for primary care
	Slide 7: We ensure people get to the right support first time to  meet their needs  
	Slide 8: We provide personalised, proactive care for people with complex needs, supported by Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
	Slide 9: We design targeted support for everyone to stay well by understanding our population by a review of the information 
	Slide 10: Four enablers are essential to delivering this vision
	Slide 11: Four enablers are essential to delivering this vision
	Slide 12: Our approach to delivering this strategy
	Slide 13: Our priorities for delivery
	Slide 14: We will continue to focus on other improvements in addition
	Slide 15: ICB and Place support for local delivery
	Slide 16: A phased approach working with cohorts across the three priorities 
	Slide 17: Thank you for reading this draft strategy (summary version).  We are grateful to all those in the BOB Integrated Care System who have helped to shape this draft strategy.  We need your views and feedback to help agree our final strategy, so plea


	9 BOB ICB Communication and Engagement Strategy update
	2024.01.24 BOB JHOSC ICB Communication and Engagement Update

	10 BOB Healthwatch update

